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Dear Sir(s),

In continuation of our letter dated May 20, 2021 on the subject cited above and in
pursuance of Regulation 30 read with Schedule III of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
we are submitting herewith the annual audited financial results (standalone and
consolidated) of the Company along with Auditors’ Report thereon, with unmodified
opinion, for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. The annual audited financial
results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved & taken on record by
the Board of Directors of the company in their respective meetings held on May 28,
2021.

The disclosure of related party transactions on a consolidated basis in terms of
Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is enclosed herewith. Further, in
terms of SEBI circular dated May 20, 2020, the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the
Company is also enclosed with the said financial results.

This is for your kind information and dissemination.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

Executive Director &
Encl: as above
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$.K. Mittal & Co. O P Bagla & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
E-29 South Extension Part-II B-225, 5t Floor,
New Delhi-110049. Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I

New Delhi- 110020.

Independent Auditor's Report on Quarterly and Year to date Standalone Financial
Results of REC Limited Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Board of Directors,

REC Limited

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex,

7, Lodi Road,

New Delhi - 110003

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone quarterly and year to date financial
results of REC Limited (the company) for the quarter and year to date ended 31* March
2021 attached herewith, being submitted by the company pursuant to the requirement
of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us these standalone financial results:

i are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the
Listing Regulations in this regard; and
ii, give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the applicable accounting standards
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the net profit
and other comprehensive income and other financial information for the
quarter ended and year to date ended 31 March 2021.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Results section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial results under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
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thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

1. We draw attention to Note No. 3 to the financial results regarding, the provision
of impairment allowance in respect of its Joan assets and Letters of Comfort. In this regard,
we have relied upon the basis of determination of impairment allowance as mentioned
above, in so far as it relates to technical aspects/parameters considered by independent
agency and management judgement for ascertaining impairment ailowance as management
overlay.

2 We draw attention to Note No. 17 of the financial results regarding the impact of
COVID-19 pandemic on the Company. Management is of the view that there are no reasons
to believe that the pandemic will have any significant impact on the ability of the company
to continue as a going concern. Nevertheless, the impact in sight of evolvement of pandemic
in future period is uncertain and could impact the impairment aliowance in future years.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

These quarterly financial results as well as the year to date standalone financial results
have been prepared on the basis of the interim financial statements. The Company’s
management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of these
financial results that give a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive
income and other financial information in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, ‘Interim
Financial Reporting’ prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in
compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial results that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of




accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial results as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
results, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors” use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial

results, including the disclosures, and whether the financial results represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentatton.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

M/s S.K. Mittal & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

Name:S. Maiﬁy |
Designation : Partner
Membership Number : 072290
UDIN :21072290AAAADC1461

Place : New Delhi
Date :28* May 2021

M/s O.P. Bagla & Co. LLP.
Chartered Accountants,
' ,;--.‘--- Hon: 000018N/N500091

Membership Number: 092656
UDIN : 21092656AAAACO3045




S.K. Mittal & Co. O P Bagla & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
E-29 South Extension Part-II B-225, 5% Floor,
New Delhi-110049. Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I

New Delhi- 110020.

Independent Auditors’ Report on Year to Date Consolidated Results of REC
Limited Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Board of Directors,
REC Limited

Core-1V, SCOPE Complex,
7, Lodi Road,

New Delhi - 110003

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated annual financial results of REC
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
(Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), its jointly
controlled entities for the year ended 31 March 2021 attached herewith, being
submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (‘Listing Regulations’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate
audited financial statements /financial results/ financial information of the

subsidiary and jointly controlled entities, the aforesaid consolidated financial results:

() include the annual financial results of the following entities
Subsidiary:
REC Power Distribution Company Limited
Joint Venture:
Energy Efficiency Services Limited, using equity method
(ii) are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the

Listing Regulations in this regard; and




(ili) give a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting
standards, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of net
profit and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the
Group for the year ended 31* March 2021.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results section of our report.
We are independent of the Group, its jointly controlled entities in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us and other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in “Other
Matter” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
Emphasis of matter

1. We draw attention to Note No. 3 to the financial results regarding, the
provision of impairment allowance in respect of its loan assets and Letters of Comfort. In
this regard, we have relied upon the basis of determination of impairment allowance as
mentioned above, in so far as it relates to technical aspects/parameters considered by
independent agency and management judgement for ascertaining impairment allowance

as management overlay.

2.  We draw attention to Note No. 17 of the financial results regarding the impact
of COVID-19 pandemic on the Company. Management is of the view that there are no
reasons to believe that the pandemic will have any significant impact on the ability of the
company to continue as a going concern. Nevertheless, the impact in sight of evolvement
of pandemic in future period is uncertain and could impact the impairment allowance in

future years.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.




Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Results

These Consolidated financial results have been prepared on the basis of the
consolidated annual financial statements. The Holding Company’s Board of
Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial results that give a true and fair view of the net profit and other
comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group including its
jointly controlled entities in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder
and other accounting principles generally accepted in Indja and in compliance with
Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and its
associates and jointly controlled entities and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
results that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial results by the Directors of the Holding Company, as

aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial results, the respective company’s
management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of
its jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group
and its jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective company’s management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its jointly controlled entities are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its jointly controlled

entities.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial results as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial results, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness

of such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates and jointly

controlled entities to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a




material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial results or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its jointly

controlled entities to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial results, including the disclosures, and whether the consoclidated
financial results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
results/financial information of the entities within the Group and its jointly
controlled entities to express an opinion on the consolidated Financial Results.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated
financial results of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated Financial Results, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and
such other entities included in the consolidated financial results of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular issued by the SEBI
under Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, to the extent
applicable.




Other Matters

(@)

(b)

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary included in the
consolidated financial results, whose financial statements reflect total assets of X
£62.79 crores as at 31¢t March 2021, total revenue of T 70.04 crores and ¥ 184.69
crores, total net profit/(loss) after tax of ¥ 3.76 crores and ¥ 25.62 crores, total
comprehensive income/ (loss) of ¥ 3.76 crores and ¥ 25.62 crores for the quarter
ended 31% March 2021 and for the period from 1* April 2020 te 31+ March 2021
respectively, and cash flows (net) of 2 -0.93 crores for the period from 1* April
2020 to 31t March 2021 as considered in the respective audited financial
statements of the entities included in the Group, which have been audited by
their respective independent auditors. The independent auditors’ reports on
financial statements of these entities have been furnished to us and our opinion,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
entities, is based solely on the report of such auditors and the procedures

performed by us are as stated in paragraph above.

The consolidated audited financial results also include the Group’s share of net profit
after tax of Z 4.45 crores and Z. -1.97 crores and total comprehensive income of 2 4.40
crores and % -0.73 crores for the quarter and year ended 31* March 2021 respectively, as
considered in the consolidated audited financial results, in respect of one joint venture
based on their interim financial information which have not been reviewed/audited by
their auditors. These interim financial results/ information are certified by the
Management. According to the information and explanations given to us by the

Management, these interim financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated Financial Results is not modified in respect of the

above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the

other auditors and the Financial Results/financial information certified by the Board

of Directors.




The Financial Results include the results for the quarter ended 31* March 2021 being
the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year
and the published unaudited year to date figures up to the third quarter of the

current financial year which were subject to limited review by us.

M/s S.K. Mittal & Co. M/s O.P. Bagla & Co. LLP.
Chartered Accountants, Chartered Accountants,

ICAI Firm Registration: 001135N ICAI Firm Registration: 000018N/N500091
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Name / Atul Aggarwal
Designation: Partner Designation: Partner
Membership Number: 099387 Membership Number: 092656
UDIN: 21099387AAAADZ9780 UDIN : 21092656 AAAACP4723

Place : New Delhi
Date :28% May 2021




REC Limited
Registered Office - Core-3, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003, CIN: L40101DL1963GOM05095

Statement of Audited Standalone Financial Results for the year ended 31-03-2021
(¥ in Crores)
S. No. [Particulars Quarter Ended Year Ended
31-03-2021 31-12-2020 | 31-03-2020 31-03-2021 | 31-03-2020
{Audited) | (Unaudited) | (Audited) (Audited) | {Audited

1 Income
A | Interest income
(i) { Interest income on loan assets 8,746.21 8,824.91 7,691.16 3430076 | 29422.33
(ii}| Other interest income 100.25 71.30 64.47 381.02 240.74
Sub-total (A} - Inferest Income 8,846.46 8,896.21 7,755.63 34,683.78 | 29,663.07
B | Other Operating Income
(i) | Dividend income 2228 - 73.78 36.40 89.04
(i1}| Fees and comnission income 3247 25.66 9.99 95.38 38.95
{iii} Net gain/ (loss} on fair value changes 244.40 120.26 (117.97) 572.33 (25.85)
Sub-total (B} - Other Operating Income 299.15 145.92 (34.20) 704.11 102.14
C [Total Revenue from Qpetations (A+B) 9,145.61 9,042.13 7.721.43 35,387.89 29,765.21
| Other Income 423 489 55.28 255 63.92
Total income (C+D) 9,149.84 9,047.02 7.776,71 35,410.44 29,829.13
2 Expenses
A | Finance costs 5,438.14 5,445.97 4,941.80 21,489.08 18,997.05
B | Net translation/ transaction exchange loss/ (gain) 213.29 (22.55) 1,332.75 330.26 2,357.90
C | Fees and commission expense 1.03 0.33 10.49 9.95 2544
D | Impairment on financial instruments 697.64 729.96 538.46 2,419.62 889.56
E | Employee benefits expenses 34.62 42.64 4211 144,84 175.79
F | Depreciation and amortization 265 2.24 315 9.33 10.00
G | Corporate social responsibility expenses 36.19 21.18 176.37 144.32 258.40
H | Other expenses 30.51 17.20 33.35 106.71 131.70
Total expenses (A to H) 6,454.07 6,236.97 7,078.48 24,654.31 | 22,845.84
3 Profit before tax (1-2} 2,695.77 2,810.05 698.23 10,756.13 6,983.29

1 Tax expense
A | Current tax

- Current year 62241 682.53 290.80 2,683.62 1,652.99
- Barlier years 89.55 - {1.23) 223.28 62.68
B | Deferred tax (85.82) (135.41) (27.05) {512.55) 481.2%
Total tax expense {A+B) 626.14 547.12 262.52 2,394.35 2,097.13
5  |Netprofit for the period (3-8} 2,069.63 2,262.93 435.711 836178 |  4,886.16
6 Other comprehensive Income/(Loss)
(i) | Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a}| Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans {11.35) 0.28 (10.83) (14.26) {2.87)
(b)] Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments 30.02 47.99 (88.89) 166.53 (129.20
{c}{ Income tax relating to these items
- Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 2.86 {0.07) 2.72 359 0.72
- Changes in fair value of FVQCI equity instruments (1.54) 0.48 {0.40) {6.01} 1239
Sub-total {(i} 19.98 48.68 97.40) 149,85 {118.96)
{ii}| Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) |Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 9261 23.84 (302.12) 8081 {302.12)
{b}|Cost of hedging reserve {11583) 154.17 {273.61} 329.00 (273.61)
{c}| Income tax relating to these items
-Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges {2331) (6.00) 76.04 (20.34) 76.04
- Cost of hedging reserve 29.16 (38.81) 68.86 (82.80) 68.86
Sub-total ((ii} 17.30 133.20 (430.83) 306.67 430.83)
Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the period (i+ii) 2.61 181.88 (528.23) 456.52 549.79)
7 Total comprehensive income for the period (5+6) 207224 244481 (92.52) §,818.30 4,336.37
8 Paid up equity share capital (Face Value ¥10 per share} 1,974.92 1,974.92 1,974.92 1,974.92 1,974.92
9 Other equity (as per audited balance sheet as at 315t March) 40,893.05 | 33,101.64
10 Basic & Diluted earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each {in ¥
(not annualised)
A | For continuing operations 10.48 11.46 221 42.34 24.74
B | For continuing and discontinued opetations 10.48 11.46 2.21 42.34 24.74

See accompanying motes o the finencial results.

Page 1 of 90




Statement of Audited Consolidated Financial Results for the year ended 31-03-2021
(T in Croreg)

S, No. | Particulars Quarter Ended Year Ended
31-03-2021 31-12-2020 | 31-03-2020 31-03-2021 | 31-03-2020
{Audited) | (Unaudited) | (Audited) {Audited) | (Audited)
1 Income
A | Interest Income
(i) | Interest income on Joan assets 8,746.21 8,824.91 7,691.16 34,302.76 29,422.33
(ii}| Other interest income 105.27 7209 66.62 390.5%9 249.45
Sub-total (A} - Interest Income 8,851.48 8,897.00 7.757.78 34,693.35 | 2967178
B | Other Operating Income
(i) | Dividend income 228 - 23.78 27.97 36.94
(ii)| Fees and commission income 3247 25.66 9.99 95.33 38.95
(iii) Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes 24440 12026 (117.97) 572.33 (2585
(iv)f Sale of services 60.83 41.65 49.93 163.65 182.11
Sub-total (B) - Other Operating Income 359.98 187.57 (3427 85%.33 232,15
C [Total Revenue from Operations {A+B} 9,211.46 9,084.57 7,723.51 3555268 | 29.903.93
D | Other Income 4.30 4.89 62.08 272 77.27
Total income (C+D) 9,215.76 9,089.46 7,785.59 3557540 §  29,981.20
2 Expenses
A } Finance costs 5,440.72 5,444.88 4,940.27 21,489.05 18,991.30
B | Net franslation/ transaction exchange loss/ (gain) 213.29 (22.55) 1,332.75 330.26 2,357.90
C | Fees and commission expense 1.03 033 1049 9.95 25.44
D | Impairment on finandal instruments 719.46 730.31 556.56 2,445.94 919.49
E | Cost of services rendered 30.82 279 23.04 88.51 71.61
F | Employee benefits expenses 39.72 47.37 45.89 163.62 193.15
G | Depreciation and amortization 2.87 2.55 3.56 10.86 11.77
H | Corporate socdial responsibility expenses 35.88 22.45 176.42 146.27 259.2%
1 | Other expenses 32.04 18.27 3421 109.28 130.41
Total Expenses (A to I} 6,515.83 6,271.53 7.123.14 24,793.84 | 22,960.36
3 Share of Profit/ (loss) of Joint Venture accounted for using equity method 4.45 (10.94) 1.78 {1.97) 9.14
4 Profit before Tax (1-2+3) 2,704.38 2,806.99 664.23 10,779.59 7.029.98
5 Tax Expense
A } Current Tax
- Current Year 626.63 685.94 295.19 2,698.02 1,579.79
- Farlier Years §9.23 {0.01) 1.16 222.95 65.27
B { Deferred Tax (89.32) (136.90) (106.11) {519.62) 412.65
Total Tax Expense (A+B) 626.54 549.03 190.24 2,401.35 2,057.71
[3 Net profit for the period (4-5) 2,077.84 2,257.96 473.99 8,378.24 4,972.27
7 Other comprehensive Income/{Loss)
(i} | Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a}| Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans (11.36) 0.28 (10.83) (14.26) (2.87)
()} Changes in fair value of FVOCT equity instruments 30.02 4799 {B8.89) 166,53 (129200
{c) | Share of Profit of Joint Venture accounted for using equity method (0.07) 0.02 ©02) (0.05) 0.12)
(d)| Income tax relating to these items
- Re-measutement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 2.86 {0.07) 272 3.59 0.72
- Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments {1.54) 0.48 (0.40) {6.01) 12.3%
Sub-total (i) 19.91 48.70 {97.42) 149.80 (119.08)
(il Thems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) |Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 92.61 23.84 (302.12) 80.51 (302.12)
(b)|Cost of hedging reserve (115.83) 154.17 (273.61) 329.00 (273.61)
(o) |Share .of other comprehensive income/ (loss) of joint venture accounted N 1.29 0.80) 129 (3.94)
for using equity method
{d)] Income tax relating to these items
_Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges (23.31) {6.00) 76.04 (20.34) 76.04
- Cost of hedging reserve 29.16 (38.81) 68.86 {82.80) 68.86
Sub-total (ii) 1730 134.49 431.63) 307.96 434.77)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (i + ii) 2.54 183.19 (529.05) 457.76 {553.85)
8 Total comprehensive Income for the petiod (6+7) 2,080.38 244115 (55.06) 8,836.00 4,418.42
9 Paid up Equity Share Capital (Face Value 210 per share) 1,974.92 1,97492 1,974.92 197452 1,974.92
10 Other Equity (as per audited balance sheet as at 31st March}) 41,230.61 33,421.51
11 Basic & Diluted earnings per equity share of €10 each (in Y
{not annualised)
A | For continuing operations 10.53 11.44 2.40 42.42 25,18
B | For continuing and discontinued operations 10.53 11.44 2.40 4242 25.18

See accompanying rotes te e financial results.
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(Tin Crores}
S, No. |Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Ag at As at Asat As at
31.03-2021 | 31-03-2020 | 31-03-2021 | 31-03-2020
{Audited) | (Audited) | (Auditeds | {Audited) |
ASSETS
(1) | Financial Assets
(a) {Cashand cash equivalents 1,140.49 1,678.03 1,179.24 1,717.71
(b) |Bank balances other than (a) above 1,929.06 2,021.96 2,22358 2,257.45
{c) | Trade receivables - - 140.07 109.07
{d) | Derivative financial instruments 231122 3,318.85 2,311.22 3,318.85
(g) | Loans 3,65,261.49 3,12,083.50 | 3,65,261.49 3,12,083.50
(f) | Envestmenis 1,909.77 23131 1,723.68 2,127.11
{8 Other financial assets 24,399.21 22,081.59 24,419.88 22,101.32
Total - Financial Assets (1) 3,96,951.24 34349714 | 39725916 | 3,43,715.01
(2) | Non-Financial Assets
(a) | Current tax assets {net) 160.07 392.66 168.92 40994
(b) | Deferred tax assets (net) 2,437.71 2,034.32 2,461.03 2,050.57
(€) | Investment Property 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
(d) | Property, Plant & Equipment 260112 153.00 260.70 156.97
(¢) | Capital Work-in-Progress 335.67 287.62 335.67 287.62
(6 [ Intangible Assets Under Development 0.77 0.77 0.77 0.77
(g} | Other Intangible Assets 6.10 8.80 6.15 8.52
th) ] Other non-financial assets 81.50 113.27 102.67 132.37
(i) | Investments accounted for using equity method - - 257.74 25847
Total - Non-Financial Assets (2) 3,281.95 2,950.45 3,593.66 3,305.54
(3} |Assets classified as held for sale - - 14.05 9.53
Total ASSETS (1+2+3) 4,00,233.19 3,46,487.59 | 4,00,866.87 3,47,030.08
TTABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILFTIES
(1} | Financial liabilities
(a) | Derivative financial instruments 846.31 1,325.73 846.31 1,325.73
(b) | Trade payables
{I) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of MSMEs - - 0.01 0.15
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs - - 61.50 46.00
{c} | Debtsecurities 2,37.328.06 2,19,977.22 | 2.37,26%9.11 2,19,918.25
{d) | Borrowings {other than debt securities) 85,507.36 61,543.61 85,507.36 61,550.66
(e} |Subordinated liabilities 6,946.89 4,819.65 6,946 89 4,819.65
(f) ] Other financial liabilities 25,943.11 23,562.70 26,222.35 2378221
Total - Firancial Liabilities (1) 3,56,571.73 3,11,228.91 | 3.56853.53 3,11,442.65
(2) | MNon-Financial Liakbilities
(a) | Current tax liabilities (net) 10.62 - 14.40 -
(b) | Provisions 103.96 106.51 104.68 107.09
(c) [ Other non-financiaj liabilities 120.51 75.61 130.25 §3.23
Total - Non-Financial Liabilities (2) 235.09 182.12 249.33 190.32
3} |Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale - - 0.08 0.68
{#) | EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 1,974.92 1.974.92 1,974.92 1,974.92
(b} | Instruments Entirely Equity In Nature B538.40 - 558.40 -
(@) | Onher equity 40,893.05 33,101.64 41,230.61 33,421.51
Total - Equity () 43,426.37 35,076.56 43,763.93 35,396.43
Total - LIABILITTES AND EQUITY (1+2+4344) 20023319 | 346,487.59| 400866.87] 347,030.08
—
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 315t March 2021
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(2 in Crores)
§. No. [Particulara Standalone Conpolidated
Year ended Year ended
31-03-2021 31-03-2020 31-03-2021 { 31-03-2020
(Audited) {Audited) {Audited) (Audited
A. | Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Net Profit before tax 10,756.13 6,983.29 10,779.59 7,029.98
Adjustments for:
1. | Loss on Derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 4.03 1.69 4.69 1.69
2. | Depreciation & Amortization 9.53 10.0¢ 10.86 11.78
3. Impairment Josses on Financial Instruments 2,419.62 882.56 2,445.94 919.48
4. | Adjustments towards Effective Interest Rate in respect of Loans 32.61 53.02 3261 53.02
5 | Adjustments towards Effective Interest Rate in respect of Borrowings 152.19 62,31 15219 62.31
6. | Fair Value Changes in Derivatives {345.92} 47.72 (545.92) 47.72
7. | Fair Value Changes in FVTPL Instruments (243) (6.40) (2.43) (6.40)
8. | Interest on Commercial Paper 3532 463.66 3532 463.66
9. | Interest Accrued on Zera Coupon Bonds 81.78 105.29 81.78 105.2%
10. | Loss/ (Gain} on Exchange Rate fluctuation 526.71 2,342.27 526.71 2,34227
11. | Loss/ (Gain} on sale of nvetsmenis - - - (3.16)
12. | Provision made for Interest on Advance Income Tax 2271 - 2271 B
13. | share of Profit/Loss of Joint Venture accounted for using equity method - - 1.97 {9.14)
(Operating profit before Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities 13,492.28 10,952.41 13,546.02 11,018.50
Inflow / {Outflow) on account of :
1 Loan Assets (56,522.42) (41,664.59) (56,522.42) (41,664.59)
2. | Derivatives 711.20 (407.70) 711.20 (407.70)
3. Other Operating Assets (1,706.71) (5,372.97} {1,827.24) (5,112.80)
4. Operating Liabilities 3,187.83 5,776.56 3,264.58 5485.70
Cash flow from Operations (a0837.80|  30,71629)  (40,827.86)|  {30,680.89)
1. | Income Tax Paid {including TD5) (2,694.33) (1,748.64) (2,696.20) (1,777.35)
2. Income Tax refund 11.73 16.67 11.73 16.67
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (4352042 (32,448.26) (43,512.33) (32,441.57)
B. |Cash Flow from Investing Activities
1. | Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment .16 0.11 0.35 0.11
2. | Investment in Property, Plant & Equipment (inct. CWIP & Capital Advances) (73.18) (97.09) (73.30} (97.51)
3. | Investment in Intangible Assets {including intangible assets under development & Capital Advances) (0.90) {2.75) {0.95) (2.75)
4. | Finance Costs Capitalised (22.04) (15.79) (22.04) (15.79)
5. | investment in Equity Shares of Joint Ventures (EESL) - (71.60) - (71.60)
6. { Sale of Equity Shares of Indian Energy Exchange Limited 24992 4.23 249.92 4.23
7. | Sale/(Investment) of/in shares of associate companies (Net) - - {0.40) 030
8 Redemption of Debt Securities (net of investment} 1,357.65 47.16 1,357.65 51.31
Q. Redemption/ (Investment) in Government Securities {net) {647.78} - (647.78) -
10. | Maturity/(Investment) of Corporate and Term deposits - - {2.93) (18.31)
1. | Realisation of investments accounted for using equity method - - - 210
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 863.83 {135.73) 860.52 {148.91)
C. | Cash Flow from Financing Activities
1. |lssue/ (Redemption) of Rupee Debt Securities (Net) 15,499.66 21,280.3% 15,499.66 21,293.39
2. {issue/ {Redemption) of Commercial Paper (net) (2,925.00) {5,270.30) (2,925.00) (5,270.30)
3. |Raising/ (Repayments) of Rupee Term Loans/ WCDL from Govt/ Banks/ Fis (net ) 26,275.47 7.899.65 26,270.47 7,904.65
4 |Raising/ (Repayments} of Foreign Currency Debt Securities and Borrowings (net) 2,584.39 12,617.57 2,884.39 12,617.57
5. |Raising/ {Redemption} of Subordinated Liabilities {net) 1,999.50 - 1,999.50 -
6. |1ssue of Perpetual Debt Instruments entirely equity in nature 558.40 - 558.40 -
7. lissue Expenses on Perpetual Debt Instruments entirely equity in nature {0.94) - (0.94) -
8. Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares (2,172.41) (2,172.41) (2,172.41) (2,172.41)
9. Payment of Corporate Dividend Tax - {435.78) - (446.06)
10. |Repayment towards Lease Liability {0.02} (0.04) (0.73) 0.64)
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 42,119.05 33,919.08 42,113.34 33,926.20
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents (537.54) 1,335.09 (538.47) 1,335,72
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the period 1,678.03 342,94 1,717.71 381.99
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the peried 1,140.49 1,678.03 1,179.24 1,717.71
&,




Notes to the financial results:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11,

The above financial resuits of the Company were reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved and taken on recard by the Board of Directors at the meetings held
on 28th May, 2021. These results have been audited by the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The audited accounts of the subsidiary company, RECPDCL {consclidated} and unaudited standalone accounts of the joint venture (Energy Efficiency Services
Limited) have been consolidated in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 110 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, Tndian Accounting Standard 117 "Joint
Arrangements’ and Indian Accounting Standard 28 'Investtnents in Associates and Joint Ventures.

Provisioning on loan assets is made based on ECL (Expected Credit Loss) methodology approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and based upon the report
provided by an independent agency appointed by the Company. Thisis further enhanced by management overlays in certain accounts wherever necessary considering
the risk involved in the account and also on account of atigning the provisions with the lead lender.

Details of impairment loss allowance maintained in respect of loan assets are as under:

_(ZinCrores)
§.No. |Particulars Ag at 31.03,2021 As at 31,03.2021
Stage 182 Stage 3 Total Stage 182 Stage 3 Total
1 Loan assets 3,59,161.22 18,256.93 3,77,418.15 | 3,01,169.13 21,25555 3,22,424.68
2. Impairment loss allowance {net of movements) 1,414.80 11,791.3t 13,206.11 1,443.91 10,552.13 11,996.04
Provigioning Coverage (%) (2/1) 0.39% 64.59% 3.50% 0.48% 49.64% 372%

Interest income on credit-impaired oan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending the cutcome of resolutions of such assets.

The Company's main business is to provide finance to power sector. Accordingly, the company does not have more than one segment eligible for reporting in terms of
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 ‘Operating Segments’,

Ratings assigned to the Company by Credit Rating Agencies:

Particulars Credit Rating
Domestic Eong-term Borrowings RISIL AAA ICRA AAA CARE AAA IND AAA
Pomestic Long Term Principal Protected Market Linked Debentures CRISIE PE-MLD AAATL ICRA PP-MLD AAA
Domestic Perpetual Bonds CRISIL AAA CARE AAY;
Domestic Short term Borowings CRISIL Al+ ICRA Al+ CARE Al+ IND Al+
[international Long:-term Issuer Rating BBB- {Fitch), Baa3 (Moody's)

The Company paid interim dividend of ¥ 5,00 per equity share {on face value of ¥ 10/- each) in the month of March 2021, The tatal interim dividend for the financial
year 2020-21 is 2 11.00 per equity share {on face value of Rs. 10/- each).

During the year, Company has issued Perpetual Debt instruments amounting 1o 2 558.40 crores which have been classified as equity since these instruments are
perpetual with no maturity; callable only at the option of the Company after 10 years and payment of Coupans are at the discretion of the Company.

Details of previous due dates for the payment of interest/ repayment of principal along with next due date for the payment of interest/ principal in respect of listed non-
convertible debt securities have beeen annexed herewith this staternent as Annexure-A in terms of the requirements of Regulation 52(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has not issued any redeemable preference shares till date.

The additional information as required under Reguiaion 52(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is as below:

8. No. Particutars Unit As at 31.03,2021
{i) Net Worth T in Crores 43,426.37
(i) Debenture Redemption Reserve ¥ in Crores -
(iid) Debt-Equity Ratio times 7.40

12, For all the secured bonds issued by the Company and outstanding as at 31st March 2021, 100% security cover has been maintained by way of mortgage on certain

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

0.

21. Previous periody years' figures have been regrouped/ reclassfied, wherever necessary, in order to make them comparabie.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28th May 2021

immovable properties and/or charge on the receivables of the Company.

The Company is a ‘Large Corporate’ in terms of the ‘Framework for Fund raising by issuance of Debt Securities by Large Entities’ laid under the SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated 26th November 2018. Necessary disclosure as required in the said framework regarding issuance of debt securities is annexed
as Annexure-B. )

The Company raises funds in different currencies through 2 mix of term loans from banks/ financial institutions/ Govt. agencies and bonds of different tenors through
private placement of debt securities. The amounts raised during the period have been utilized for the stated objects in the offer document/ information memorandum.
Further, there has been no default as on 31st March, 2021 in the repayment of debt securities, borrowings and subordinated liabilities and the Company has met all its
debt servicing obligations, whether principal or interest, during the period.

Disclosures in respect of Liguidity Risk Management in accordance with RBI Guidelines dated 4th November 2019 are annexed at Arnexure-C.

In accordance with the RBI Circular No. RB1/2021-22/17 DORSTR REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 7th April 2021 and the methodelogy for caleulation of interest or
interest based on guidance issued by Indtan Banks' Association, Company has put in place a Board approved policy to refund / adjust interest on interest charged to
borrowers during the moratorium period, ke. 1st March 2020 te 31st August 2020. Company has estimated the aggregate amount to be refunded/adjusted and thus has
made a provision in the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021. Accordingly, interest income for the quarter and year ended 31st March 2021 is lower
by % 129,25 crores.

The Covid-19 situation has been under close watch by the Company to take prampt actions for continuity of husiness operations in an optimised manner. An update
on the impact of Covid-19 outbreak on the business operations of the Company is annexed as Annexure-D.

The disclosure in respect of related party transactions on Standalone and Consolidated basis for the period ended 31st March 2021 have beeen annexed herewith this
statement as Annexnre-E.

The Baiance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity {SOCIE), Statement of Cash Flows and summarized Notes to Accounts, including
Significant Accounting Policies on Standalone basis and Consolidated basis for the year ended 31st March 2021 have been annexed herewith this statement at
A ¥ and An; G respectively.

The figures for the quarter ended 31st March 2021 and 3ist March 2020 have been derived by deducting the year to date figures for the period ended 31st December
2020 and 31st December 2019 from the audited figures for the year ended 31st March 202t and 31st March 2020 respectively.

For REC Limited
(Sanjay Malhotra, IAS)

Chairman & Nanaging Director
DIN - 00992754




Previous due dates for the payment of interest! repayment of principal along wi

th next due date for the payment of interest/ principal

Annexure-A

% in Crores)
§.Ne. TSIN No. Bond Type Bond Series Amount Rate of Previous Due | Whether the Next Due Amount Next Due Amout

OCutstanding Interest | Date of Interest/| Same has been | Date for Date for

Principal Faid or Not Interest Principal

Repayment Payment Payment
1 \NED20B98427 _|[nstitutional Bonds 184 125000 | B75% -Jun 20 DA &-Jun-21 19| 9-fun-25 1,250.00
2 NEO20BUBAL3 |Institutional Bonds _[95-11 1,800.00 | B75% 13-jul 20 PAID 12-Jul-29 158 | 14-Jul-25 1,800.00
3 TNE020B08567 |Institutional Bonds 1100 150000 | 963% 15-Jul-20 PAID 15-ul-21 1644 | 15-jul-21 1,500.00
4 INEGZ0B08591_jlnstitutional Bonds 101-111 317180 948% 10-Aug-20 PAID 10-Aug21 3472 [ 16-Aug21 3,171.80
& I t i IBonds_|105 3920 ]  975% 11-Nov-20 PAID 11-Nov-21 4305 | 11-Nov-2t 392230
6 [NED20B08740 |Institutional Bords 107 237820 9.35% 15-Jun-20 PAID 15-Jun-21 222 15Jun22 2,378.20
7 INEQ20B0B807 [Institational Bonds |111-K 2211200 9.02% 19-Nov-20 PAD 19-Nov-21 199 | 19-Nov-2 221120
8 [MED20B08831 |Institutional Bonds 114 130000 882% 13-Apr-20 PAID 12-Apr-21 379 | 12-Apr-23 4,300.00
B [NEO20B06849 [Institutional Bonds 1115 250000 | B06% 1-Jun-20 PAID 31-May-21 202 31-May-23 2,500.00
10 | INEOZOBO7IWZ |Institubional Bonds |123-1 1,51500 | 940% 17-Jul-20 PAID 17-§ul-21 1657 | 17-Jul-21 1,515.00
1| INEO20B071Z5 [institutional Bonds _|123-10-10vrs L9500 | 934% 25-Aug 20 PAID 25-Aug 21 183 ] 23-Aug24 1,955.00
12 | INEC2OBOBE72 |Instittional Bonds 127 155000 | 844% 15-May-20 CAID 15-May-21 131 4-Dec2l 1,550.00
13 | INEC20B0S880 [Institutional Bonds 1128 225000  BS7% 15-May-20 PAID 15-May-T1 193 | 71-Dec-24 225000
14 | INEO20B03898 |Institutional Bonds 129 152500 823% 15-May-20 PAID 15-May-21 158§ 23an-25 1,975.00
15| INEO20B08906 |Institational Bonds 130 732500 | 827% 15-May-20 PAID 15-May-21 152 6Feb2s 2,325.00
16 | INEC20B0MSL4 jInstitutional Bonds 131 228500 | 835% 23-Feb-21 PAID 23-Feb-27 191 [ 25-Fep 25 2,285.00
7 | INEe0B08922 [Institutional Bonds 1132 70000]  827% 15-May-2) PAID 15-May-21 058 | 9-Mar22 7000
18 | INEDZBOS930 |Institutions! Bonds 133 239600 | 8.30% 15-Fec-20 PAID 15-Dec-2} 199 | 10-Apr-25 2,396.00
19 | INEO20B0B963 linstitutional Bonds  [136 2,585.00 | BA1% 310xt-20 PAID 1-Nov-21 210 | 7-Oct-25 2,585.00
20 | INEC20808997 |nstitutional Bonds 139 250000 | 724% NLDet-20 PAID 21-Oct-23 2676 | 21-0ct-21 2,500,008
71 | INGOZOBOBAAZ jonal Bonds _|140 210000 782% 1-Dec:20 PAID 30-Nov-21 157 | 7-Nov-26 2,10000
27 | INEOXIB0SAB1 |Institutional Bonds _[t41 102000 | 7.14% 31-Dec-20 PAID 9-Dec21 1088 [ 9-Dec2l 1,02000
23 | INEO0BORACS jinstitutional Bonds 142 300000 | 754% 31-Dec 20 PAID 31-Dec-21 2.26 | 30-Dec-26 300000
73 | INEOZ0BOBAF2 [institutional Bonds ;145 62500 | 7A6% 1-Mar-21 PAID 28 Feb-22 677 | 28-Feb-22 62500
75 | INEG20BOBAHS [nstitutional Bonds (147 274500 | 795% 30-Mar-21 PAID 30-Mar-22 218 | 12-Mar-27 2,745:00
26 | INEGZOBOBAK2 |institutional Bonds {350 267000 | 7403% 7-Sep-20 PAID 7-5ep-21 1881 7-Sep-22 2670.00
27 | INEG20BOBAMS |Institutional Bonds 1152 177500 | 7.0%% 17-Oct-20 PAID 18-0ct-21 os7 | 170922 1,225.00
26 | INE020808AO4 [Institutional Bonds 1154 000 | 7.18% 21-May-20 PAID 21-May-21 643 | 21-May-21 600,00
33 | INEC20BOBAF] |Institutional Bands 155 191200 | 745% 1-Dec-20 PAID 30-Nov-21 142 | 30-Nov-22 1,912.00
30 | [NEO20BOBAQS [Institutional Bonds 1156 35300 | 7.70% 14-Dec-20 PAID 13-Dec-2t 272¢ 10-Dec?? 353300
31 | INEO20B98AR7 |Institutional Bonds 157 1055.0¢ | 780% 17-Apr-20 PAID 17-Apr-21 1135 | 17-Apr-21 1,055.00
32 | INED2BOBAT3 |(nstitutional Bonds 1159 95000 | 749% 23-Feb-21 FAID 23-Feb-22 076 23Feb-73 95000
33 | [NEOZOBOSAWS? |Institutional Bonds 1616 w000 | 773% 15-Jun-20 PAID 15-Jun-21 w62 | 15JunZl 200.00
3t | INEOZBOSBA1 |Institutional Bonds 162 250000 | 855% 10-Aug-20 PAID 9-Aug-2k 244 SAug-Z8 2,500.00
35 | INEO20B0BBBY |Institutional Bonds [163 250000 | 563% 27-aug 2 PAID 27-Aug71 216 | 25-Aug?8 2,500.00
36 | INE020BOSBDS |Institutional Bonds |165 2171400 | 883% 22-Jar-21 PAID 21-Jan-22 2062] M-Jan22 2,17L06
37 | WNEO20BOSBED [Institutionat Bonds |167 25780 | BAS% 72-Mar-21 PAID 22-5ep-21 110 | 22-Mar-22 2,571.80
36 | INEOD20BOBBGS |Institwtional Bonds |16 2,55240 | 856% A0-Nov-20 PAID 2-May-21 108 | 29-Nov-28 2,552.40
3% | INEG20BOEBHG |Institutional Bonds |169 255400 | 837% 7-Dec-20 PAID 7-Jun-21 107] 7-Dec:2 2,554.00
30 | INEOZOBUEBM6 jInstitutional Bonds 173 75000 | 835% 15-Mar 21 PAID 11-Mar-22 7.8 | 11-Mar-22 2,500.00
[T 41| INE020BOSBN4 |Institutionsl Bonds ji74 27000 815% 18-Jun-20 PAID 18-Jun-21 7942 | 1-jun2l 2,720.00
[ T4z | inE020803BP9 {institutional Bonds {175 2120 897% | T-Mar2l | PAID [ 28-Mar-2 193 | 2&Mar29 2,151@

Page 6 of 90




in Crores
5No. ISIN No. Bond Type Bond Series Amgunt Rate of Previous Due | Whether the Next Due Amount Next Due Amount

Cutstanding Interest | Date of Interest/| Same has been Date for Date for

Principal Paid or Not Interest Principal

Repayment FPayment Payment
43 INEG20B0BBQ? |Institutional Bonds 176 1,600.70 8.85% 16-Apr-A PAID 16-Apr-21 142 | 6-Apr29 1,600.70
44 INED20BOEBRS _|Institutional Bonds 177 1,245.00 B.50% 21-Dec-20 PAID 20-Dec-21 1351 | 20-Dec-21 1,245.00
45 INEO20B08BS3 |Institutional Bonds 178 1,087.00 #.80% 14-May-20 PAlD 14-May-21 0.97 | 14-May-29 1,097.00
46 INEG20BOSBT] |Institutionai Bonds 179 1,000.00 8.15% 10-Jun-20 PALD 10-jun-21 082 | 10Jun22 1,000.00
47 [NFO0BOSBY7 |Instinational Bonds 180-A 1,018.00 B8.10% 25-Jun-20 TAID 25-Jun-21 0.82 | 25-Jun-24 1,018.00
48 INEOR0B0SBUS |Institational Bonds 180-B 2,070.90 8.30% 25-Jun-2 PAID 25-Jun-21 172 | 25-Jun-2% 2,970.94
49 INEQ20BOSBWS_|Institutional Bonds. 182 5,063.00 B.18% 24-Aup-20 PAID 23-Aug-21 4.14 | 22-Aug-34 5,063.00
50 INEO0BOSBX itutional Bonds _|183 3,028.00 8.29% 16-5ep-20 PAID 16-Sep-21 251 | 16-Sep-34 3,02800
51 TNEO20B0SDD Lnstitutional Bonds _|184-A (Partly paid up} 580.40 8.25% 28-Sep-20 PAID 77-Sep-21 048 | 26-Sep-29 58040
52 INEO20BOECAS |Institutional Bonds _1184-B (B) 300.00 7.55% 2B-Sep-20 PALD 24-5ep-21 323 24-5ep-21 300.00
53 INER0BORCET | Zero Coupon Bonds 184-B (C) 300.00 7.55% 28-Sep-20 PAID 27-Sep-21 023 26-5p-22 300.00
54 [NEO20BOBCCS |Zero Coupon Bonds 184-B (DY 300.00 7.55% 28-Sep-20 PAID 27-5ep-21 023 ] 26-8ep-2 300.00
55 [NEO20B08CD3 | Instikutional Bonds 185 2,769.00 7.09% 14-Dexc-20 PAID 13-Dec-21 196 | 13-Dec-22 2,769.00
56 INEQ20BOSCEL jtutional Bonds |186-A 2,500.00 6.90% 30-fun-20 FAID 30-Jun-21 1.73 | 30-fun-22 2,500.00
57 TNEQ20BOBCER itutional Bonds {1866 1,500.00 7A40% 26-Nov-20 PAID 26-Nov-21 1111 26-Nov-24 1,500.00
58 INFO20BISCGH |Institutionat Bonds 1187 2,090.00 7.24% 31-Dec-20 PAID 31-Dec-21 151 | 31-Dec22 2,090.00
5 [NEOZUBOGCH4 |Instinational Bonds 138-A 1,400.00 7.12% 31-Mar-21 PAID 31-Mar-22 1.00} 31-Mar23 1,400.00
60 INED20BOSCI2 |Institutional Bends 188-B 1,500.00 7.89% 31-Mar-21 TAID 31-Mar-22 0.87 | 31-Mar-30 1,10050
61 TNEQZ0BOECI0 jInstitutional Bands |189 3,054.90 7.92% 31-Mar-21 PAID 31-Mar-22 2423 31-Mar-30 30549
52 [NED2CBISCKS [Institutional Bonds }190-A 2,500:00 6.88% 1-Mar-11 PAID 26-Feb-22 1.72 | 20-Mar-25 2,500.00
63 INE020B0SCLG |Institutional Bonds 190-8 2,489.40 6.32% 1-Mar-21 PAID 31-Dec-21 2621 | 31-Dec-21 248540
61 TNE020BOBCN2 [institutional Bonds 191-A 1,100.00 680% 1-Maxr-21 PAID 28-Feb-22 075 | 30-Jun-23 1,100.00
65 INED20B0SCM4 [Institutional Bonds 191-B 1,100.00 6.99% 1-Mar-21 PAID 28-Feb-22 077 | 30-Sep-24 1,10000
56 IEO20B0SCP? [Instiukional Bonds 192 2,382.00 7.50% 1-Mar-21 PAID 28-Feb-22 179 | 28Feb30 2,382.00
67 INE020BOBCOS5 |Institutional Bonds 193 1,515.00 6.59% 1-Mar-21 PAID 31-Dec-I1 1180 | 31-Dec-2t 111500
68 [NE020808CTY_|Institutional Bonds 195 2,985.00 6.92% NA NA 22-Apr21 207 | 2Z2-Apr-23 2,985.00
& INE020BOSCU7 |Instisutiona Bonds 197 3,740.00 7.55% NA NA 11-May-21 252 | 11-May-30 3,740.00
70 INE020BOSCYS5 [Institutional Bonds _|198A 2,596.00 6£.60% 22-Mar-21 PAID 21-Mar-22 2767 | 21-Mar-22 2,596.00
71 [NE020BOBCW3 | Institutional Bonds 196B 1,563.00 7.79% NA NA 21-May-21 122 | 21-May-30 1,569.00
72 INED20B0RCX1 nstitutional Bonds _|199 1,999.50 7.96% NA NA 15-Jun-21 162 | 15-fun-30 1,999.50
73 [NEG20BOSCY9 |Institutional Bonds 200 PP-MLD 500.00 5.36% NA NA NA Na | 3-un-23 500.00
74 INEQ20BOSCZ6 |Institutional Bonds 2014 HRLOC 5.90% NA NA 31-pu-21 053 | 31-Mar-25 500.00
75 INEG20BOBDAY ifutional Bonds | X1B 1,300.00 6.90°% NA NA 31-Jul-21 050 | 31-Mar-31 1,300.00
76 INEG20BGADBS |Institutional Bonds 2024 3,500.00 7.25% NA NA 30-Sep-21 277} 30-Sep-30 3,500.00
77 INFO20B08DCS [Institutional Bonds 2028 247400 565% NA NA 30-5ep-21 153 | 30-5¢p-23 247400
78 INED20BUSDES |Institutional Bonds 203A 5,000.00 £.80% NA NA 20-Dec-21 388 | 20-Decd 5,000
il INEC20BOBDFS itutionat Bonds 2038 2,777.00 5.85% NA NA 20-Dec-21 146 | 20-Dec25 2,777.00
0 NEDIOBOSDGA [Institutional Bonds {2044 2,500.00 6.50% 1-Feb-21 PAID 31-[an-22 173 3Jan-31 2,500.00
81 NEO20BOSDH2 |Institational Bonds 2048 2/082.00 5.81% NA NA 31-Dec-21 126 | 31-Dec25 2,082.00
B2 INEQ20BOSD}E |Institutional Bonds 205A 2,135.00 4.99% NA NA 31-Jan-22 112 | 31jan-24 2,135.00
83 INE020BOSDKS [institutional Bonds 2058 2,000.00 5.94% NA NA 31-Jan-22 1251 2-Jand6 200000
8 INEOZOB0SDM:. [institutional Bonds 1207 4,589.%) 7.02% NA NA 31-lan-22 3.25 | 31-jan-36 4,58%.90
45 INEC20B0SDO8 {instirutional Bonds 08 3,613.8¢ 7.40% NA NA 15-Mar-22 270 15-Mar-36 3,613.80
86 INEOZ0BOBDPS |Institutional Bonds 209 1,550.00 5.79% NA NA 21-Mar-22 0.90 | 20-Mar-24 1,550,080
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2 in Crores,

%.No, ISTN No. Bond Type Bond Series Amournt Rate of Previous Due | Whether the Next Due Amount Next Due Amount

Qutstanding Fnterest  |Date of Interest/| Same has been |  Date for Date for

Principal Paid or Not Interest Principal

Repayment Payment Payment
87 INEQ20B07GGY | Tax Free Bonds 2011-12 702.61 7.93% 1-Jnl-20 PAID 1-Jul-21 5572 ] 2B-Mar-22 702,61
B INED20B0O7GGY | Tax Free Bonds 2011-12 137.06 8.13% 1-ful-20 PAID §-jul-21 1114 | 2B-Mar-22 137.06
89 INEO20B07GH? |Tax Free Bonds 2011-12 1,970.83 8.12% 1-Jud-20 PAID 1-Jul-2A 160.03 | 29-Mar-27 197083
90 INEO20BO7GH? |Tax Free Bonds 2011-12 189.4% B.32% 1-hal-20 PAID 1-Jul-21 1577 | 29-Mar-27 18549
91 INEC20BO7HMS [ Tax Free Bonds Private Placement-2013-14 209.00 801% 29-Aug-20 PAID 29-Aug21 16.74 1 29-Aug23 209.00
92 [NEQ2GBOTHN3 |Tax Free Bonds Private Placement-2013-14 1,141.00 B.46% 29-Aug-20 PAID 29-Aug-21 96,53 | 29-Aug-28 1,141.00
93 TNEO20BO7HUS |Tax Free Bonds Private | t-2013-14 10500 8.18% 11-Oct-20 PAID 11-Cct-21 858§ 131-Oct-23 105.00
94 [NEO20BO7HY6 {Tax Free Bonds Private Placement-2013-14 45.00 A.54% 11-Oct-X0 PAID 11-Oct-21 384 | 11-Oct-28 4500
95 TNEDZ0R07GUO | Tax Free Bonds Private Placement-2012-13 25540 7.21% -Nov-2¢ PAID 22-Nov-21 1839} Zi-Nov-22 255.00
96 INEG20B07GVS 1 Tax Free Bonds Private Placement-2012-13 245.00 7.38% 21-Nov-20 PAID 22-Nov-21 1808 | 22-Nov-27 24500
97 INEO20BO7GW6 [Tax Free Bonds 212-13 814.04 7.22% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 5877 | 19-Dec-22 B814.04
98 ENEOZOBO7GWS [Tax Eree Bonds 2012-13 35127 7.72% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec21 2712 | 19-Dec-22 35127
59 INECR0B07GX4 | Tax Free Bonds 2t2-13 462.41 7.38% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-2} 3413 [ 20-Dec-27 46241
100 INEQ20B07GX4 |Tax Free Bonds 2012-13 389.63 7.88% 2-Dec-X) PAID 1-Dec-21 3070 | 20-Dec-27 389.63
1H INED20BO7GYZ |Tax Free Bonds 201213 5247 5.88% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 361 | 27-Mar-23 5247
102 INENZ0B07CY2 [Tax Free Bonds 2012-13 28.89 7.385% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 213 | 27-Mar-23 2859
103 INEOBO7GZ9 |Tax Free Bonds 2012-13 11.24 7.04%. 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 079 | 27-Mar-28 11.24
104 | INEOBO7GZY |Tax Free Bonds HN2-13 3847 7.54% 2-Dec-2 PAID 1-Dec21 250 | 27-Mar-28 3847
105 | YNEG20B07HOIL jTax Free Bonds 201234 245.54 8.01% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 19.67 | 25-5ep-23 24554
106 [NE020BO7HR4 |Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 2R.56t 8.01% 2-Dec-20 FAID 1-Dec-21 229 | 258ep-23 2861
107 INE020B07HR4 | Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 300.91 8.26% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 24.85 | 25-50p-23 30031
108 INEQ20BO7HFS \Tax Free Bonds 2012-14 1,638.78 B46% 2-Dec-X) PAID 3-Dee-21 138.64 | 25-Sep-28 1,638.78
109 INE020B07HS2 [Tax Free Bonds 261314 169.75 B.46% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dee-21 14.36 | 25-5ep-28 169.75
110 INER20BO7HS2 |Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 1,003.73 8.71% 2-Dec-26 PAID 1-Dec-21 87.25 | 25-Sep-28 1,001.73
11 INE@20B07HQ6 |Tax Free Bonds 201314 13.66 RI7% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 114 | 2565ep-33 13.66
112 [NE020BO7HTO [Tax Free Bordds 2013-14 3.63 BI7% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 0305 26-5ep-33 3.63
113 INEQ20B07HTO {Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 38.01 B8.62% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 328 | 26Sep-33 38.01
114 INEG20B071C4  |Fax Free Bonds 2013-14 289.25 8.19% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 2369 | 22-Mar-24 789.25
115 INEG20BG7IE? | Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 5.39 8.19% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 0.44 | 22-Mar-24 539
116 INEO20BO7IF7 |Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 12467 8.44% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 1052 | 22-Mar-24 12467
1z INEQ20BOTID2 _|Tax Free Bordds 2013-14 237 .88 8.63% 2-Dec-X PAID 1-Dec-23 2053 | 23-Mar-29% 237.88
118 INE020B07IGS |Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 2319 B.63% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 200 | 23-Mar-29 23.19
119 INE020B07IGS _[Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 269.3% 8.88% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 2392 | 23Mar29 260.35
120 JNEOZOB07IEG {Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 24.63 8.61% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 212 | 24-Mar-34 24.63
171 INE020B07IH2 _[Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 4.67 8.61% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 040 | 24-Mar-34 4.67
122 INEO20B07IHE3 [Tax Free Bonds 2013-14 80.36 2.86% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 712 | 24-Mar-34 80.36
123 INEO20B07]07_{Tax Free Bonds Private Placement-2015-16 300.00 7.17% 2-Dex-20 FAD 1-Dec-21 2151 | 23-Jul 25 300.00
124 INED20BO7]P4 [Tax Free Bonds 701516 5125 6.89% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 353 [ 5-Nov-25 5125
125 INEDR0B07JC2 |Tax Free Bonds 2015-16 .85 6.89% 2-Dec20 PAID 1-Dec-21 0.06 | 5-Nov-25 0.85
126 INE020B07JQ2 | Tax Free Bonds 2015-16 53.83 7.14% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 384 | 5Nov-25 53.83
127, [NEOZ0BO7JRO_|Tax Froe Bonds 2015-16 13364 7.09% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 948 | 5-Nov-30 133.64
128 INED20B07]38 |Toax Free Bonds 205-16 028 7.09% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec21 0.02) SNov-30 0.28
129 MNE020B07[S8 _|Tax Free Bonds 2015-16 28.99 7.H% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 286 | 5-Nov-30 38.99
130 INEOZ0B07J 6 |Tax Frec Bonds 2015-16 235.1% 7.18% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 1688 | 5-Nov-3% 23641
13t INE020807JU4 _|Tax Free Bonds 2015-16 46,18 7.18% 2-Dec-20 PAID 1-Dec-21 332 | 5Nov-as 4618
132 | NEOZBO7IU4 [Tax Free Bopds (201546 13986 |  7.43% 2-Dec:20 PAID 1-Dec-21 1039 ] 5Nov-25 139.86
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¥ in Croves,
5.No. ISIN No. Bond Type Bond Series Amgunt Rate of Previous Due | Whetherthe | NextDue Amount Next Due Amount
Qutstanding Interest | Date of Interest!| Same has been | Date for Date for
Principal Paid or Not Interest Principal
HKepayment Payment Payment
133 REC Infrastructure Bonds 2011-12 : Option-V1: 10
[NED20B08716 |infrastructure Bonds | Years with Annuat Int. Option (Withaut Buyback 138 89500% 15-Feb-21 Paid 15-Feb-22 032] 15-Feb-22 138
Option)
134 REC Inérastructure Bonds 2013-12 : Option-VIII
INEO20B08732 |Infrastructure Bonds 115 Years with Anmual int. Option (Without| 113 | 91500% 15-Feb-21 Paid 15-Feb-22 0.10 | 15Feb-27 113
Buyback Option)
135 REC Infrastructure Bonds 211-12 : Option-V : 10}
INEO20ROR708 | Infrastructure Bonds | Years with Cumulative Int. Option (Without 5731 B95.00% 15-Feb-21 Cumulative 15-Fab-22 1.02 | 15-Feb-22" 573
Buyback Option)
136 REC Infrastructure Bonds 2011-12 : Option-VIL §
L §NE020B08724 |Infrastructure Bonds |15 Years with Cumulative [nt. Option {Without 283 915.00% 15-Feb-21 Cumulative 15-Feb-22 0.52 | 15-Feb-2?" 283
Buyhack Option}

~ Cumulative Interest till date of redemption wilt also be paid in addition to principal amount.
Note - REC Infrastructure Bonds are iisted on NSE Only.
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Annexure B

The Company is a 'Large Corporate’ in terms of the Framework for Fund raising by issuance of Debt Securities by Large Entities’ laid under the
SEBI Circular No. SEB/HO/DIHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated 26th November 2018. Disclosure required under the said circular regarding details of

incremental borrowings during the year is as below:

Reasons for shortfall, if any, in mandatory borrowings throug!l debt securities

Particulars Details
Name of the company REC Limited
CIN L40101DL1569GOI005095
Outstanding borrowing of company as on 31st March 2021 (¥ in Crores) * 258117.38
Highest Credit Rating during the previous FY along with name of the Credit Rating Agency ICRA AAA., CRISIL AAA, CARE AAA,
IRRPL AAA
Securities listed Yes
Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of shortfall in the required Bombay Stock Exchange
borrowing under the framework
Report filed for Financial Year 2020-21
Details of the borrowings
(¥ in Crores
Particulars Amount
Tneremental borrowing done in the financial year 74,517.66
Mandatory borrowing to be done through issuance of debt securities (25% of a) 18,629.41
Actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY 53,413.50
Shortfall in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities, if any (b-Q) -
N.A

* Borrowings as mentioned in {ifi} above include all outstanding borrowings with original maturr
commercial borrotings as per the SEBI Circular.
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(iv)

Additional Disclosures in accordance with RBI Circular on liquidity risk management

The Company has put in place an effective Asset Liability Management System

which monitors the liguidity risk with the help of liquidity gap analysis. The Company continu
investments that are readily con

maintains adequate bank palances, overdraft facilities, short term

and has also constitu
ously monitors the projected and ac
vertible into cash and adequate borrowing plans.

Annexure C

ted an Asset Liability Management Committee ("ALCO”)
tual cash flows and accordingly

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (borrowings)

Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Number of significant counterparties* 20
Amount (T in Crores} 1,82,250.87 1,25,850.36
% of Tota) Liabilities 51,08% 40.41%
Top 10 borrowings
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
{inCrore) | borrowings | (¥ in Crore) borrowings
Term Loan from State Bank of India 10,839.90 3.36% 7,299.92 2.61%
Term Loan from Govt. of India- National Small Savings Fund (NSSF) 10,000.00 3.10% 10,000.00 3.57%
SARC- Series XII (2018-19) 6,651.77 2.06% 6,6561.77 2.37%
54FC- Series XIIL (2019-20) 6,157.72 1.91% 5,759.14 2.06%
Term Loan from India [nfrastructure Finance Company Ltd. (IIFCL) 5,800.00 1.80% - 0.00%
Foreign Currency Bonds- US $700 Mn Bonds 5,145.33 1.60% 5,277.01 1.88%
Institutional Bonds- 182nd Series 5,063.00 157% 5,063.00 1.81%
Institutional Bonds- 203rd A Series 5,000.00 1.55% - 0.00%
Foreign Currency Bonds- US $650 M Bonds 4,777 .81 1.48% 4,900.08 1.75%
Term Loan from HDFC Bank 4,650.00 1.44% - 0.00%
Institutional Bonds- 114th Series - 0.00% 4,300.00 1.54%
54EC- Series XI (2017-18) - 0.00% 9,565.23 3.41%
Institutional Bonds- 105th Seties - 0.00% 3,922.20 1.40%
Total 64,085.53 19.87% 62,738.35 ZZEAJ
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/ product
Name of significant instrument/ product * As at 31-03-202% As at 31-03-2020
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
(% in Crore) Liabilities 2 in Crore) Liabilities
Debt Securities
Institutional Bonds 1,73,338.60 4858%] 1,52,132.20 48.85%|
Foreign Currency Bonds 26,461.71 7.42%,| 2261578 7.26%
54EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 18,121.59 5.08% 2237633 7.19%|
Tax Free Bonds 12,648.41 3.54% 12,648.41 4.06%
Sub-Total (1)|  2,30,570.31 64.62%] 20977272 67.36%
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Term Loans from Banks 29,938.58 8.39% 18,899.78 6.07%
Foreign Currency Borrowings 21,024.72 5.89% 21,762.71 6.99%
Loans repayable on demand from Banks 10,186.52 2.85% - -
Term Loans from Govt. of India 10,000.00 2.80% 10,000.00 3.21%
Term Loans from Financial Institutions 5,800.00 1.63% - -
FCNR (B) Loans 5,329.10 1.49%) 6,973.20 2.24%
Sub-Total (2) 82,278.92 23.06% 57,635.69 18.51%
Subordinated Liabilities 6,650.70 1.86%, 4,651.20 1.49%
Total (1+2+3) 3,19,499.93 89.54% 2,72,059,61 87.36%
Stock Ratios:
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Amount % of % of Total | % of Total Amount % of Public % of Total % of Total
(Zin Crores) | Public Liabilities Assets {2 in Crores) Funds Liabilities Assets
K, A
Commetcial Papers - B - - 2,925.00 1.04% 0.94% 0.84%)|
Non-Convertibie debentures having maturity - - - - - - - -
of less than one vear
Other Short-Termm liabilities 20,511.10 6.36% 5.75% 512%| 1055134 377% 3.39% 3.05%

* Significant counterparty!
accounting in aggregate to move than 1% of the company’s total liabilities.

significant instrument! product is defined as a single counterpartyl single tnstrument! product

or group of connected or affiliated counterparties




(iv) Liquidity Coverage Rativ Disclosure

RBI, vide its Liquidity Framework dated 04 Nov,
of more than € 10,000 Crores w.e.f. 01 Dec, 2020. These
Assets (HQLA) that can be converted into cash easily and immediately to meet its liquidity needs for a

liquidiy stress scenario.
The LCR is represented by:

guidelines of RBI aims to ensure that Company

Total Net Cash Qutflows over the next 30 calendar days

where,

(i Total net cash outflows is defined as the total expected cash outflows minus total expected cash inflow.

assigned a predefined stress percentage, as prescribed by RBL

¢ii} High Quality Liguid Assets (HQLA) means liquid assets that can be readily sold or

collateral to obtain funds in a range of siress scenarios.

The LCR requirement is binding on NBECs from December 1, 2020 with the

required level of 100% by December 1, 2024.

immediately converted into cash at little

2019 has stipulated maintaining of Liquidity Coverage Ratio {LCR) by Non-Deposit taking NBFCs with asset size
has an adequate stock of unencumbered High-Quality Liquid
30 calendar day time horizon under a significantly severe

s for the next 30 calendar days, where the cash flows are

or no loss of value or used as

minimum HQLAS to be held being 50% of the LCR, progressively reaching up to the

The Company from December 1, 2021 is maintaining the LCR @ 50% on monthly observations till February 28, 2021 and on every day basis thereafter (though RBI
has prescribed LCR on every day basis from April 01, 2021 only).

At Present, HQLA investments are held in INR in the form ol

Bonds and auto swap balance with banks.

C "™ { HOLA:
Out of the Stock of HQLA, the

Government Securities is the highest proportion of HQLA followed by AAASAA Co

position of HQLA holding as on 31 March 2021 is as follows:

f Government Securities(G-Sec)/ State Development Loans (SDLs) Securities and AAA/AA Corporate

rporate bonds and auto swap balances. The

HQLA Items % of Overall
Asgets without Haircut 82%
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 23%
- Secand SD1s 59%
Assets with 15% Haircut 18%
. Cotporate Bonds 18%
Assets with 50% Haircut -
Total 100%
uidil v 1
(T in Crores
Particulars Quarter ended 31-03-202] uarter ended 31-12-2020
Total Total Total Tatal
Unweighted | Weighted Unweighted | Weighted
Value Value Value Value
{average)* {average)* {average)” (average)*
Hi jty Ligui
Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 2.151.50 2,120.54 2.249.00 222113
- AAAAA Corporate Bonds 206.39 175,43 185.81 157.94
- (:-SEC Bonds 483.29 48329 345.69 345.69
- Banks Autoswap 1,461.82 1,461.82 1,717.50 1717.50
utfjows
Other contractual funding obligations 11,720.66 13.478.76 10,418.50 11,981.28
Other contingent funding obligations 2.193.98 2,523.08 1,970.25 2,265.78
Total Cash Qutflows 13.914.64 1600184 12,388.75 14.247.06
Cash Inflows
Inflows from fully perferming exposures 7,480.10 5,610.08 6,789.11 509183
Other cagh inflows 11,867.52 8,855.64 6,290.00 4,717.50
Total Cash Inflows {restricted to 75% of Outflows on every observation day} 19,287.63 11,760.86 13,079.11 9,509.33
o i V.
Total HOLA 2,120.54 3,221.13
Total Net Cash Qutflows 4,240.98 4,437.73
LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (% 50.00% 50.05%

* For average, the observations as on 31.01.2021, Z

8.02.2021 and daily observation during March 2021 has been considered.
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Annexure-D

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic on the Company

India is currently grappling with the second wave of COVID-19 pandemic with significant
increase in the number of cases in India. The resultant lockdowns are less restrictive for
economic activity and are concentrated in the most-hit states. Giobal waves suggest impact on

manufacturing activity is less devastating as vaccination rollout gathers pace.
Liquidity Buffers with the Company

Company has not experienced any significant impact on its liquidity position owing to strong
credit profile and access to diversified sources of borrowings. The Company has put in place
adequate liquidity buffers in the form of Working Capital/ Term Loan limits from various banks
apart from High Quality Liquid Assets.

Covid-19 Relief Package for the Power Sector

The Govt. of India, as a part of its Covid-19 relief package, had announced liquidity injection to
the State Discoms in the form of State Govt. guaranteed loans through REC and PEC (Power
Finance Corporation Ltd.) to clear the outstanding dues of Power Generation and Transmission
Companies. As on 15% May 2021, the Company has already sanctioned and disbursed % 67,083
crores and Z 40,766 crores respectively to the discoms as part of this liquidity package.

The Company believes that with the pickup in global vaccination and gradual decrease in the
Covid cases, the business and commercial activity is poised for resurgence, leading to increase
in power demand and generation. Considering REC’s comfortable liquidity position and access
to diverse sources of funds, there are no reasons to believe that the current crisis will have any
significant impact on the Company’s ability to maintain its operations, including the going
concern assessment. However, the impact will continue to be dependent on future
developments, which are uncertain, including, among other things, any new information
concerning the severity of the Covid-19 pandemic and any further action by the Govt. or the

Company to contain its spread or mitigate its impact.
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Transactions with the related parties during the year ended 31st March 2021:

Annexure E

(Z in Crores

Particulars Standalone | Consolidated
Power Finance Corporation Lid.

Dividend Paid 1,143.44 1,143.44
Directors' Sitting Fee 0.10 0.10
Loan Repayable on Demand raised 3,000.00 3,000.00
Finance Cost 0.49 0.49
REC PDCL

Apportionment of Employee Benefit and Other Expenses 8.96 -
Dividend Income 8.43 -
Finance Costs - Interest Paid 0.85 -
Other Expenses 7.98 -
RECTPCL*

Apportionment of Employee Benefit and Other Expenses 4.42 -
Finance Costs - Interest Paid 371 -
Post-employment Benefits Plan Trusts

Contributions made by the Company during the year 1.50 1.50
Finance Costs - Interest Paid 0.74 0.74
Post-employment Benefits Plan Trusts of Ultimate Holding Company

Finance Costs - Interest Paid 0.38 0.38
Key Managerial Personnel

Finance Cost 0.01 0.01
Employee Benefits Expense - Managerial Remuneration 3.21 3.21
REC Foundation

Payment towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 90.00 90.00

* During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its order dated February 5, 2021 has accorded its approval to the scheme of
amalgamation of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited ( RECTPCL) (“Transferor Company”} with REC Power
Distribution Company Limited (RECPDCL) (“Transferee Company”) with appointed date as April 1, 2020. Accordingly, related
2021

party transactions with RECTPCL have been presented till the effective date i.e., 5th February,
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(% in Crores

S. |Particulars Note Asat Asat
No. No. 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
ASSETS
(1) | Financial Assets
(a} | Cashand cash equivalents 6 1,140.49 1,678.03
{b) |} Bank balances other than (a) above 7 1,929.06 2,021.96
{c) |Derivative financial instruments 8 2,311.22 3,318.85
{d) |Loans 9 3,65,261.49 3,12,083.50
(e} |Investments 10 1,909.77 2,313.21
{f) | Other financial assets 11 24,399.21 22,081.59
Total - Financial Assets (1) 3,96,951.24 3,43,497.14
(2) | Non-Financial Assets
(a) | Current tax assets (net) 12 160.07 392.66
{(b) | Deferred tax assets (et} 13 2,437.71 2,034.32
{c} §Investment Property 14 0.01 0.01
(d) | Property, Plant & Equipment 15 260.12 153.00
(e} |Capital Work-in-Progress 15 335.67 287.62
{f) |Intangible Assets Under Development 15 077 Q.77
(g) | Other Intangible Assets 15 6.10 8.80
¢h) | Other non-financial assets 16 81.50 113.27
Total - Non-Financial Assets (2) 3,281.95 2,990.45
Total ASSETS (1+2) 4,00,233.19 3,46,487.59
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1} | Financial Liabilities
(a) |} Derivative financial instruments 8 846.3 1,325.73
(b) {Debt Securities 17 2,37,328.06 2,19,977.22
(c} | Borrowings (other than debt securities) 18 85,507 .36 61,543.61
(d) Subordinated Liabilities 19 6,946.89 4,819.65
{ey ] Other financial kabilities 20 25,9431 23,562.70
Total - Financial Liabilities (1) 3,56,571.73 3,11,228.91
(2) | Non-Financial Liabilities
{a) ]Current tax liabilities (net) 21 10.62 -
(a} | Provisions 22 103.96 106.51
(b) §Other non-financial liabilities 23 120.51 75.61
Total - Non-Financial Liabilities (2) 235.09 182.12
(3} | EQUITY
(a) {Equity Share Capital 21 1,974.92 1,974¢.92
b) | mstruments Entirely Equity In Nature 25 558.40 -
{¢) | Other equity 26 40,893.05 33,101.64
Total - Equity (3) 4342637 35,076.56
Total - LIABILITIES AND EQUITY {1+2+3) 4,00,233.19 3,46,487.59
Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies 1to 5




REC Limited

Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Dethi - 110003, CIN: L40101DL1969G 01005095
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2021

(% in Crores
S. |Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. No. 33-03-2021 31-03-2020
Revenue from Operations
i) |Interest Income 27 34,683.78 29,663.07
(i) |Dividend Income 28 3640 89.04
(iii) | Fees and Commission Income 29 95.38 38.95
(iv} | Net gair/ (loss) on fair value changes 34 572.33 {25.85)
L | Total Revenue from Operations (i toiv) 35,387.89 29,765.21
II. | Other Income 30 22.55 63.92
II1. } Total Income {I+I1) 35,410.44 29,829.13
Expenses
(i) | Finance Costs E1l 21,489.08 18,597.05
{ii} | Net translation/ transaction exchange loss 32 330.26 2,357.90
{iii) | Fees and commission Expense 33 9.95 2544
(iv) }Impairment on financial instruments 35 2,419.62 889.56
(v} | Employee Benefits Expenses 36 144.84 17579
(vi) | Depreciation and amortization 37 9.53 10.00
{vii) | Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses - 38 144.32 258.40
{viii} | Other Expenses 39 106.71 131.70
[V. | Total Expenses (i to viii) 24,654.31 22,845.84
V. |Profit before Tax (11-IV) 10,756.13 6,983.29
V1. | Tax Expense 40
(i) | Current tax 2,906.90 1,615.87
(i) | Deferred Tax (512.55}) 481.26
Total Tax Expense (i+ii) 2,394.35 2,097.13
VIL { Profit for the year 8,361.78 4,886.16
Other comprehensive Income/{Loss)
(i) | Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) |Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans (14.26}) (2.87)
) | Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity Instruments 166.53 (129.20)
(¢} ]Income tax relating to these items
- Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 359 0.72
- Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity Instruments (6.01) 12.39
Sub-Total (i) 149.85 (118.96)
(i) | Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) |Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 80.81 (302.12)
(b} |Cost of hedging reserve 329.00 (273.61)
{(©) | Income tax relating to these items
_Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges (20.34) 76.04
- Cost of hedging reserve (82.80) 68.86
Sub-Total (ii) 306.67 (430.83)
VIIL | Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (i+ii) 456.52 (549.79)
1X. | Total comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIID} §,818.30 4,336.37
X. IBasic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share of 210 each {in O) 41
(1) | For continuing operations 42.34 24.74
(2) ] For continuing and discontinued operations 42.34 24.74

Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies 1-5




REC Limited
Registered Otfice - Core-4, SCOFE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Deihi - 110003, CIN: LAOLO1DTISAG 0005095

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2021

A Equity share capital
(% in Crores:
Particulars As at 31-03-2121 As & 310520
Orening Balance 197492 19749
Changes in eguity share capital during the year - -
974.92 197492
B Instruments entircly equity in nature
& in Crores
Particulare As at 1-03-2071 As ab 31-03-200
Opening Balance - n
Changes in instruments entirely equity in nature duting the vear 558.40 -
[Clesing Balance 558.40 -
€ Other Equity
{2 in Crores,
Farticulars Reperves & SgThu FVOCL- | Effective | Costuof Total
Speial Rescrve for Reserve Debenture | Securities Foreign Gereral | Impairment Retained Equity Portian of Hedging
Reserve Bad and | Fund wis 45- | Redemption Preminm Currency Reserve Reserve Earnings Inetruments | Cash Flow reserve
created ufe | doubtful IC of Reserve Account Monetary Hedges
36(1) (wiii) of | debls w's Reserve Teem
the Income | 36(1%viia) of | Bank of Tranalation
Tax Act, 1961} the Income | India Act, Differenice
Tax Act, 1961 1934 Account
Balance au ot 318k March 2019 1513678 36472 1,133.00 131813 225684 (764.82) 517740 - 4,899.39 136.89 - . 3232802
Prafit for the year 4,88616 4,886.16
Remezsurement of Defined Benafit Plans (net of] {2.15)| {215)
taxrs)
Recognition  through  Other Comprehensivel - {116.81) {226.08) (204.75) (547.64)
Tncnme et of taxes)
Total Comprehensive Income - - - - - - - - 488401 116 81/ (226.08)/ {204.75) 433637
Other adjustments
‘Transferred tof (Frum) Retalned Earnings 1,52232 33652 578,00 4915 - 793.29 {3,67928) -
Transferred to General Reserve (378.41) {1,367.28). 1,745.6% - -
Reclassification  of gain/  (less) on ealef] (86.19)| 86.19 -
extinguishment of FYOCT equity insirument
Forcign Currency Transiation gain/ (loss) on long) {1,63051)| (1,620.51)|
terta monetary itemé during the year
Amortisation during the year 675.95 675.95
Total- Other adjustments 152232 41.89)| 978.00 {1,318.13) - (954.56) 1,745.69 79329 8619 - - (954.56}
Dividends 2,17241)
Dividend Distribution Tax (435.78 )
| Tota)- Tranesction with cwers 5 - : - - - - . - - - 1
Baiarice an at J1st March 220 16,659.10 299283 2,131.00 - 2,236.54 {1,719.38) 6923.00 793.29 106.26 {226.06); 1204.75) 33,1m.64
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FVOCH Cash Flow | Costs of

¥ in Crores;
Total
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fPasticulare Reserves %
Special | Reserve for | Reserve Debenture | Securities Foreign General | Impairment [  Retained Equity Hedging Hedging
Reserve Bad and | Fund w/s 45- | Redemption Premlum Currency Heserve Reperve Earnings Inetruments eserve TesaTVE
created wis | doublful 1C of Reserve Account Monetary
36(1) fvili) of} debts w3 Reserve Item
the [ncome |36(1)(viia) of  Bankof Translation
Tax Act, 196t} the Income India Act, Ditference
[ Tax Axt, 1961 1934 Account
Balance as at 31st March 2020 16,659.10 2,99283 2,151.00 - 213654 (1,719.38) 695309 TR 34m.74 HE.26 {226,08H {204.75) 33,101.64
Profit for the vear 8,361.78 836178
Remmeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (net o {10.67)| {10.67)|
haxes)
Kecognition  through  Other Comprehensive - 160.52 60.47 246.20 46719
Tneome {nat of taxesl
Total Compeehensive Income - - - - - - - - 835111 160.52 60.47 246.20 851830
et adjustments
Transferred tof (from) Retained Earninge 256313 28813 1,673.00 981.10 - 15,505.36) -
Transferred to General Reserve - {1,152.55)] 1,545.84 (79329 - -
Reclassification  of  galn/  (loss) o sale/] 24271 (242.71);
extinguishment of FVOCT equity instrument
Foreign Currency Translation gain/ {loss} on long] 437.65 437.65
torm monetary items during the year
Arnortisaton durine the year 708.57 F08.57
lnsuc expenses on Perpetual Debt Instruments| (0.70) {0.70)
{net of baxash
Total- Other adinetmenta 256313 1864.42) 1,673.00 - - 114622 29269 9520 {5,263.35¥ (22.71) - - 1,145.52
Dhvidends (2.172.41) {2,17241)
|« - - - : - - - - (217241 - - -
at arch 19, 1284 Y - 223,54 | - 74 41,




REC Limited
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003, CIN: 140101D1.1969G 01005095

Statement of Cash Fiows for the year ended 31st March 2021

(% in Crores,
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
A, Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Net Profit before Tax 10,756.13 6,953.29
Adjustments for:
1. Loss on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 4.03 1.69
2. Depreciation & Amortization 9.53 10.00
3. Impairment losses on Financial nstruments 2,419.62 889.56
4, Adjustments towards Effective Interest Rate in respect of Loans 3261 53.02
5. Adjustments towards Effective Interest Rate in respect of Borrowings 152,19 62.31
6. Fair Value Changes in Derivatives {545.92) 47.72
7. Fair Value Changes in FVTPL Instruments (2.43) (6.40)
8. Interest on Commercial Paper 3532 463.66
9, Interest Accrued on Zero Coupon Bonds 81.78 10529
10. Loss/ (Gain) on Exchange Rate fluctuation 526.71 2,342.27
11. Provision made for Interest on Advance Income Tax 2.7 -
(Operating profit before Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities 13,492.28 10,952.41
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :
1. Loan Assets (56,522.42) (41,664.59)
2, Derivatives 71120 (407.70)
3. Other Operating Assets (1,706.71) (5,372.97)
4. Operating Liabilities 3,187.83 5,776.56
Cash flow from Operations (40,837.82) {30,716.29)
1. Income Tax Paid (including TDS) (2,694.33) (1,748.64)
2. Income Tax refund 11.73 16.67
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities {43,520.42) (32,448.26)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
1. Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 16 0.11
2. Investment in Property, Plant & Equipment {incl. CWIP & Capital {73.18) (97.09)
Advances)
3. Investment in Intangible Assets (including intangible assets under (0.90) (2.75)
development & Capital Advances)
4. Finance Costs Capitalised {22.04) (15.79)
5. Investment in Equity Shares of Joint Venture {EESL) - (71.60)
6. Sale of Equity Shares of Indian Energy Exchange Limited 24992 423
7. Redemptior/ (Investment} in Debt Securities (net} 1,357.65 47.16
8. Redemption/ (Investment} in Government Securities {net} {64778} -
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 863.83 (135.73)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
1. Issue/ (Redemption) of Rupee Debt Securities (Net) 15,499.66 21,280.39
2. Issue/ (Redemption) of Commercial Paper (net) {2,925.00) (5,270.30)
3. Raising/ (Repayments) of Rupee Term Loans/ WCDL from Govt./ 26,275.47 7,899.65
Banks/ FIs (net }
4. Raising/ (Repayments) of Foreign Currency Debt Securities and 2,884.39 12,617.57
Borrowings (net)
5. Raising/ (Redemption) of Subordinated Liabilities (net) 1,599.50 -
6. Issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments entirely equity in nature 558.40 -
7. Issue Expenses on Perpetual Debt Instruments entirely equity in nature (0.94) -
8. Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares (2,172 41) (2,172.41)
9. Payment of Corporate Dividend Tax . - (435.78)
10. Repayment towards Lease Liability (0.02) (0.04)
11.. Repayment towards Lease Liability Interest amount
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 42,119.05 33,919.08
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents (537.54) 1,335.09
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1,678.03 342.94
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 1,140.49 1,678.03

During the year, the Company has received Dividend of T 36.40 crores (previous year 7 89.04 croves). Further, during the year, the Company has
paid an amount of T 147.78 crores {previous year T 258.40 crores) towards Corporate Social Responsibility.




Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents as at end of the year are:

(€ in Croxes)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
- Cash in Hand (including postage & imprest) 0.12 0.06
- Balances with Banks 237.93 1,173.41
- Short-term Deposits with Scheduled Banks 902.44 504.56
otal Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,140.49 1,678.03
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
(¥ in Crores)
Particulars Opening Cash Flows | Movement in Other Adjustments Closing
Balance during the Interest Exchange EIR Balance
year (net) Acctued * | Differences | Adjnstments
Year ended 31-03-2021
Rupee Debt Securities 1,95,022.98 15499.66 657.68 - 87.34 2,11,267.66
Commercial Paper 2,889.68 {2,925.00) - - 3532 -
Rupee Term Loans/ WCDL 32,978.45 26,275.47 27 44 - - 59,281.36
Forelgn Currency Drebt Securities & other Barrowings 50,629.65 2,884.39 16.81 (1,392.24) 14774 52,286.35
Subordinated Liabilities 4,819.65 1,999.50 128.90 - (1.16) 6,946.89
Total 2,86,340.41 43,734.02 830.83 (1,392.24) 269.24 3,29,782.26
Year ended 31-03-2020
Rupee Debt Securities 1,72,971.40 21,280.39 72947 - 41.72 1,95,022.98
Commercial Paper 7,696.32 (5,270.30) - - 463.66 2,889.68
Rupee Term Loans/ WCDL 24,884.25 7,899.65 194.55 - - 32,978.45
Foreign Currency Debt Securities & other Borrowings 33,950.25 12,617.57 73.78 3,930.12 57.93 50,629.65
Subordinated Liabilities 4,818.76 - 0.61 - 0.28 4,819.65
Total 2,34,320.98 36,527.31 998.41 3,930.12 563.59 2,86,340.41

* Movement in Interest Accrued has been considered in ‘Operating Liabilities as Cash Flow from Operating Activities.
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REC Limited
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003

CIN: L40101DL1969G 01005095

Notes to Accounts

Company Overview

REC Limited (“REC” or the “Company”) was incorporated in the year 1969. The Company is domiciled
in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal place of business at Core-4,
SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, India. The books of accounts and financial
statements are maintained at Plot no. I-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, Haryana, in addition to the registered
office of the Company. The Company has offices spread across the country, mainly in the State Capitals

and one training center at Hyderabad.

The Company is a Government Company engaged in extending financial assistance across the power
sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non-Banking
Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

REC is a leading public Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC are
interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and

Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure.

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation
These Standalone Financial Statements comply with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines.

The finandial statements for the period ended 31* March 2021 were authorized and approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28" May 2021.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and are in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind
AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms/ guidelines.

Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are as given

below:

Basis of Preparation and Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historica! cost basis except for certain financial assets
and financial Jiabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies.
These policies have been applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements.
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Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR’) which is also the functional currency of

the Company.

Income recognition
Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and

rate applicable.

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) costs
and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii} overdue interest
including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted first, except for
credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only after the
complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest including
interest tax, if any. The recovery under One Time Settlement (OTS)/ Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
(IBC) proceedings is appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery
thereafter, towards interest and other charges, if any.

For ali financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized on
an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately

under the head interest income.

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire interest
amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted against the

corresponding interest income.

Income from Government schemes
Income of agency fee on Government schemes is recognized on accrual basis based on the services
rendered.

Dividend income
Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into account on

accrual basis when REC’s right to receive payment is established.

Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as established
only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting,

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognised

separately under the head ‘Dividend Income’.

Other services
Fees/ charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on

accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Company in the year of receipt.
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3.5

3.6

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or construction
of a qualifying asset, till the time such a qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended use sale, are
capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its

intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the

effective interest rate method.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re-
measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in
the financial statements before 1 April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in a “Foreign
Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance period of

such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated

using the exchange rates at the transaction date).

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets mainly comprise of computer software which is initially measured at cost. Such assets
are recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow

to the company.

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value)

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management estimates the

useful life of intangible assets to be five years.
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Intangible Assets under Development

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as
‘Intangible assets under development’ till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the
acquisition/ development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are

classified under “Capital Advances’.

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial meastrement

Land

Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined,
related carrying amounts are not depreciated.

Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as

finance lease and is amortised over the lease term.

Other Tangible assets
PPE other than land is initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including any costs

directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by the Company’s management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the Statement

of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives, residual value, and impairment)

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assets as
prescribed under Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset isin use
for more than 15 days, instead of charging the same on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase/sale.
Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided @ 100%.

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial
year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

De-recognition
An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
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recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Work-in-Progress

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as ‘Capital work-in-progress.” The
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition/ construction of PPE
which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under ‘Capital Advances.”

Investment property

Investment properties are the assets which have undetermined future use. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the

purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company beyond one year. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement

of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
The Company only has land as an investment property, which is not depreciated.

De-recognition

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property {calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognized.

Financial Instruments
A Finandial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured
initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described

below.




Classification and subsequent meas urement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories

upon initial recognition:

» Amortized cost

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCT)

» Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures (carried at cost in accordance with
Ind AS 27)

All financial assets except for those at FVIPL or equity instruments at FVOCI are subject to review for
impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are

applied to each category of financial assets, which are described below.

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the

following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.
A loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized on financial assets carried at amortized cost.

Modification of cash flows

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the
renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss
in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present
value of the renegotiated or modified contractuat cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified
financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are either do not meet the criteria for amortized
cost classification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are
designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative finandial instruments also fall into this
category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge
accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or
losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by

reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
bined instrument vary.in a way similar to

contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the




a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise
would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign
exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to
a party to the contract.

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts
or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging

instruments.

Financial assets at FVOCI

FVOCTI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity investment
classified as FVOC] is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income and reported within the FVOCI reserve within equity,
except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such gains
and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment.

However, the Company may transfer the same within equity.

De-recognition of financial assets

De-recognition of financial assets duetoa substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the
difference recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not

already been recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Financial assets {(or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) are derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Company also derecognizes the financial
asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

Classification and subsequent measurettient of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at
fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. All host contracts which are in nature of a
financial liability and separated from embedded derivative are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
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new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit

or loss.

Hedge accounting
To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements:
- there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument
- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship
- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that
the Company actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and teported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is
effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges
are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in

equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
quIty y 8 P Zn ymp

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification

adjustment within other comprehensive income.

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship, in accordance with the Company’s risk management objective and strategies. The
documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk(s)
being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effectiveness

requirements.

Impairment of financial assets

Loan assets

The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since

initial recognition as summarised below:

s Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date.

e Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that do not have objective evidence of impairment.

e Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL
for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default
and Loss Given Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its

obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument.
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Loss Given Default (LGD) - LG represents the Company’s expectation of loss given that a default
occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually be

lost post recoveries in case of a default.

Exposure at Default (EAD) — EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding, interest
accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default.

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD
and LCD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an

ongoing basis.

Financial assets other than Loans

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets
has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected

credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as
at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition. The Company also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. The Company assumes fhat the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the

balance sheet date.

Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped

pursuing the recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-
term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily convertible

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in
equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors
respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are
recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for payment by the Company.

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the
prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are

restated.




314

3.15

3.16

Prepaid Expenses
A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition,

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax, It is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OClI or
directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
income. Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Company
and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to
apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the

same tax authority.

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in
profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive

income or equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid
annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non-

monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution
plans as under:
Defined contribution plan
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A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions in respect of
the employees into a separate fund. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the
Company towards defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which the

contributions relate. -

Defined benefit plan

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, Post Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF) and Other
Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit plans covering
eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service, final salary, and other defined
parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company, even if plan assets for
funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside.

The Company’s obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The
liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of
the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets.
Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries.

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other

Comprehensive Income.

Other long-term employee benefits:

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one-
year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are

charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined.

Loan to employees at concessional rate

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and transaction
value is recognised as deferred employee cost, which is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of the L.oan, the
unamortised deferred employee cost on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected

remaining period of the loan on a prospective basis.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company
and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on
the most reliable evidence available at the teporting date, including the risks and uncertainties
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associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time

value of money is material.

A contingent liability is disclosed for:
Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot

be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered

improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party conceming
the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not

exceed the amount of the related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the

related asset is disclosed.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transactiont between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and Liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as foliows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
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e+ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements regularly, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the palance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is
considered as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Company; are
available for immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed for sale at a price
and the sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification.

Such non-current assets are measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs.

Non-current assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and are
not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale,

Implementation of New/ Modified Standards

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} has issued amendments to certain Ind AS.
The Company has analysed the impact of these amendments which is not material to the Company,
except for the amendment to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109 with respect to Interest rate benchmark
reform. Tt aims to modify some specific hedge accounting requirements to provide relief from the
potential effects of uncertainty caused by the interest rate benchmark (IBOR) reform. Further details on
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform and its impact on the Company ate available in the financial

statements.

Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant management judgments

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ lability — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized
is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized. Further, the Company Management has no intention to make withdrawal from
the Special Reserve created and maintained under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and
thus, the special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. Hence, the company
does not create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve.




Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several extemal and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - Interest income on credit-impaired
loan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending the outcome of resolutions of

stressed assets.

Significant estimates

Impact of Covid-19 Outbreak - The Company has considered the possible impacts of COVID-19 in
preparation of these financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and
going concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on
revenue recognition and impact on effectiveness of its hedges. The Company has carried out this
assessment based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of
these standalone financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these
financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19
on the standalone financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
standalone financial statements owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19. The extent to which the
Covid-19 pandemic will impact the Company will depend on future developments, which are
uncertain, including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the Covid-19
pandemic and any further action by the Govt. or the Company to contain its spread or mitigate its
impact.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the
utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of
future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and
the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy
is used for fair valuation.

Income Taxes — Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of
expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset.

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) ~ The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial
assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions
about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and
resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgments about the following while assessing
expected credit loss to estimate ECL: ‘




Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;

Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/ market and the associated ECL; and

Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL.

Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in
case of default)
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

F in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
- Cash in Hand (including postage & imprest) 0.12 0.06
- Balances with Banks
- in current accounts 237.93 1,173.41
- deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 902.44 504.56
Total (Cash & Cash Equivalents) 1,140.49 1,678.03
Bank Balances (other than Cash and Cash Equivalents)
® in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
- Earmarked Balances with Banks
- For unpaid dividends 5.79 4.75
- For govt. funds for onward disbursement as grant 1,065.84 1,616.49
- Earmarked Term Deposits
- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 0.56 0.53
- Term Deposit held as Margin Money against Bank Guarantee 0.25 -
- Balances with banks not available for use pending 856.62 400.19
allotment of securities
Total (Other Bank Balances) 1,929.06 2,021.96
- Term Deposits held as margin money against Bank Guarantee for 0.25 -

more than 12 months
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Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks. Derivatives held for risk management purposes include
hedges that are either designated as effective hedges under the hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic hedges. The table below shows
the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts.

Part]
{Z in Crores
F’Eﬁcums As at 31-03-2021 "As at 31-03-2020
Notional Fair Value - | Fair Value - Noetional Fair Value - | Fair Value -
A i Asset Liabilit ; A Liabiliti
Currency Derivatives
- Spot and forwards - - - 565.39 27.62 -
- Currency swaps 2,854.54 43.07 121.08 3,094.32 43294 -
- Others

- Call Spread 4,263.27 271.36 - 6,068.56 504.12 -

- Seagull Options 20,482.08 1,657.19 43.25 22,321.22 2,212.46 -
Sub-total (i) 27,599.89 1,97M.62 164.33 32,049.49 3,177.14 -
Inferest Rate Derivatives
_ Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 25,035.68 339.60 403,65 29,056.52 141.71 586.06
Sub-total (ii) 25,035.68 339.60 403.65 29,056.52 141.71 586.06
Other derivatives
- Reverse cross currency swaps 4,547.00 - 27833 4,347.00 - 739.67
Total - Derivative Financial Instruments (i + ii+iii) 57,182.57 2,311.22 846.31 65,453.01 3,318.85 1,325.73




Part 11

Included in Part I are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as below:

(Z in Crores
Particulars As af 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Notional | Fair Value - | Fair Value- Notional | Fair Value - | Fair Value -
Amounis Assets Liabilities Amounts Assets Liabilities
(i) ]Cash Flow Hedging
- Currency Derivatives
- Currency Swaps 2,756.43 23.86 121.08 8,638.68 232 303.14
- Others
- Call Spread 1,837.62 77.74 - 1,884.65 97.16 -
- Seagull Options 20,482.08 1,657.1% 43.25 11,348,70 1,662.20 -
- Interest Rate Derivatives
_ Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 13,055.84 - 318.18 9,498.62 5.24 134.45
Sub-total (i) 38,131.97 1,758.79 482.51 31,370.65 1,766.92 437.59
(i) [Undesignated Derivatives 19,050.60 552.43 363.80 34,082.36 1,551.93 888.14
Total - Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii) 57,182.57 2,311.22 846.31 65,453.01 3,318.85 1,325.73
Detivative financtal instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date. The changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in effective cash flow hedges are recognised in

of Profit & Loss.

OCL For undesignated derivatives,

the changes in the fair value are recognised in the Statement




(A)
(i
{ii)

(B}
(i
(ii)
(i)
tiv)

(O
(i)
(ii)

Loans

The Company has categorised all loans at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109.

 in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Principal O/s | Amortised Cost | Principal O/s | Amortised Cost
Loans
Term Loans 3,77,041.98 3,78,090.35 3,21,526.76 3,23,177.53
Working Capital Loans 376.17 37724 897.92 902.01
Total (A) - Grass Loans 3,77418.15 3,78,467.60 3,22,424.68 3,24,079.54
Less: Impairment loss allowance (13,206.11) (13,206.11) (11,996.04) (11,996.04)
Total (A) - Net Loans 3,64,212.04 3,65,261.49 3,10,428.64 3,12,083.50
Security Details
Secured by tangible assets 2,56,744.52 2,57,329.46 2,44,034.67 2,45,113,22
Secured by intangible assets - - - -
Covered by Bank/ Govt. Guarantees 1,61,071.53 1,01,456.48 58,166.76 58,684.29
Unsecured 19,602.10 19,681.67 20,223.25 20,282.03
Total (B) - Gross Loans 3,77418,15 3,78,467.60 3,22424.68 3,24,079.54
Less: impairment loss allowance (13,206.11) (13,206.11) {11,996.04) (11,996.04)
Total {B) - Net Loans 3,64,212.04 3,65,261.49 3,10,428.64 3,12,083.50
Loans in India
Public Sector 3,38,810.31 3,39,877.44 2,84,644.05 2,86,210.40
Private Sector 38,607.84 38,590.16 37,780.63 37,869.14
Total (C){I) - Gross Loans 3,77,418.15 3,78,467.60 3,22,424.68 3,24,079.54
Less: Impairment loss allowance (13,206.11) (13,206.11) (11,996.04) (11,996.04)
Total (C)(I} - Net Loans 3,64,212.04 3,65,261.49 3,10,428.64 3,12,083.50
(CYT}] Loans cutside India - - - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - -
Total {CHII} - Net Loans - - - -
Total (C)I) and (€D 3,64,212.04 3,65,261.49 3,10,428.64 3,12,083.50
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Investments

X in Crores
iParticulars tised At fair velue Sub-total Others (At Total
Cost Through Other | Through profit |Designated at fair: Cost)
Comprehensive or loss value through
Income profit o loss
[41] (] (3) 4 5= 1+2+43+4) {6 [ij]
As at 315t Masch, 2021
Gavt. Securities 549.08 - - - 649.08 - 649.08
Debt Secutities 376562 - 143.06 - 519.68 - 519.68
Equity Instraments - 43013 2360 45373 218.29 67193
Preference Shares 2609 - 4299 - G0 - 69.08
Others - - N - y -
Total - Gross (A) 1,051.79 43013 209.65 - 57 21820 190977 |
Tnvestments outside lndia - - - - - - -
Investments in india 1,051.79 430,13 209.65 - 1,691.57 218.20 1,909.77
Total - Gross (B} 1,051.79 430.13 209.65 - 1,691.57 21820 1,909.77
Total Investments 1,051.. 430.13 209635 1,691.57 218.20 1,909.77
Less: impaitment loss allowance (C) - - - - - - -
Total - Net (D=A-C} 1,051.79 43013 209.65 - 169,57 21820 1,909.77 |
As at 31st March, 2020
Govt. Securities - - - - - - -
Debt Securities. - - 1,500.62 - 1.500.62 - 1.500.62
Equity [nstruments - 507.43 1250 519.93 21820 73813
Preference Shares 2293 - 45.41 - 5834 - 69,34
Others - 6.12 - - 612 - 612
Total - Gross (A) 293 513.55 1,558.53 - 21820 231321
[nvestments oatside [ndia - - - - - - -
Investments in India 293 51335 3,558.53 - 2,09501 218.20 231321
Total - Gross (B) 293 51358 155853 - 2,095.01 218.20 231321
‘Total Investments 2293 513.55 1,558.53 - 2,095.01 218.20 2,313.21
Less: impairment loss allowance {C) - - - - . - -
Totai - Net @=A-C) 2293 513,55 1,556.53 - 209501 21820 231321
Detalls of investments
in Crores
Particulars Investment measured at As ai 31-03-2001 As at 331-03-2020
Number Amourt Number Amount
Government Securities
-5.77% GSEC 2030 Amortised Cost 50,090,000 49.95 - -
- 7.17% GSEC 2028 Amortised Cost 50,00,000 54.64 - -
-7.27% CSEC 2026 Amaortised Cost 50,00,000 55.98 - -
- 5.22% GSEC 2025 Amortised Cost 50,00,000 50.99 - -
- 6.95% Tamil Nadu 5DL 2031 Amortised Cost 25,00,000 2502 - -
- 6.48% Karnataka SDL 2031 Amortised Cost 40,00,000 4126 - -
- 6.835% Rajasthan SDL 2031 Amortised Cost 30,00,000 2995 - -
- 6.60% Himachal Pradesh SDL 2030 Amortised Cost 50,00,000 51.28 - -
- 6.60% Uttar Pradesh SDL 203¢ Amortised Cost 20,00,000 19.74 - -
- 8.44% Jharkhand SDL 2129 Amortised Cost 30,00,000 3253 - -
- 7.29% Kamataka 5DL 2039 Amortised Cost 1,00,00,000 10097 - -
- 8.35% Kerala SDL 2029 Armortised Cost 10,600,000 1086 - -
- 8.60% Gujarat SDL 2028 Amortised Cost 20,00,000 22.70 - -
- 8.57% Rajasthan SDL 2028 Amortised Cost 10,00,000 1102 - -
- 6.20% Rajasthan SDL 2027 Amortised Cost 20,00,000 20.36 - -
- 7.20% Maharashtra SDL 2027 Amortised Cost 20,00,000 21.53 - -
- 7.24% Karnataka SDL 2037 Amortised Cost 50,00,000 50.30 - -
Sub-tolal - Government Secuarities 649.08 -
Debt Securities
- 7.05% Bonds of Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited Amortised Cost 850 88.18 - -
-6.65% Bonds of Food Corporation of India Amartised Cost 200 2062 - -
- 7.19% Bonds of THDXC India Limited Amortised Cost 250 26.33 - -
- 8.69% Bonds of Damadar Valley Corporation Amortised Cost 200 2138 - -
-7.30% Bonds of Power Grid Corporation of India Limnited Amortised Cost 200 22,65 - -
- 5.78% Bands of Chenrui Petraleum Corpotation Limited Amortised Cost 150 15.63 - -
- 6.11% Bonds of Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited Amortised Cost 100 10.52 - -
- 7.30% Bonds of NMDC Limited Amortised Cost 200 7 - -
- 11.15% Perpetual Bonds of indian Bark Fair value through profit or loss - - 5,000 500.31
- 11.25% Perpetual Bonds of Bank of Baroda Fair vatue through profit or loss - - 5,000 500.00
- 11.25% Perpetual Bonds of Syndicate Bank Fair value through profit or loss - - 5,000 500.31
- 3% Qptionally convertible debentures- Series A of Essar Pawer Fair value through profit or loss 22,85,25,079 99.33 - -
‘Transmission Co. Lid.
- 3% Optionally convertible debentures- Series B of Essar Power Fair value through profit or loss 10,06,12,911 43.73 - -
Transtnission Co. Lid.
- Optionally convertible debentures- Series C of Essar Power Fair value through profit or lose 1,86,35,162 - - -
Transmission Co. Lic.
- 0% Non- Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Ferro Alloys Amortised Cost 2,52,91,783 149.10 . _
Corperation Limited
-0.01% Optionally convertible Debentures {OCD) Series A of Fair value through profit or loss 21,38,03,170 - - .
R.K.M PowerGen Private Ltd.
- 0.01% Cptionally convertible Debenturcs {OCD) Series B of Fair value through profit or loss 63,03,032 - - -
R.X.M PowerGen Private Ltd.
-0.(N% Optionalty convertible Debentures (OCD) Series Al of Fair value thtough profit or loss 1,04,74,150 . - -
R..M PowerGen: Private Ltd,
Sub-total - Debt Securities 519.68 1,500.62




A2 al 31002021

As 2t 31032020

Particulars Investment measured at

Number Amount Number Amount
Equity [nstruments.
- NHPC Lid. Fair value throtigh other comprehensive income 17,53.02,206 42861 17,53.02,206 349.73
- Indian Energy Exchange Ltd. Fair vatue through other comprehensive income - - 1,22,71,211 157.01
-HUDCO Lid. Fair value through other comprehensive income 347,429 1.52 347429 0.69
- Universal Commaodity Exchange L2d. Fair value through other comprehensive income 1,60,00.000 - 1,60,00,000 -
- Rattan India Pewer Lid. Fair value through profit or loss 9,25,68,105 23.60 9,25,68,105 12.50
- R.K.M PowerGen Private Lid. Fair value throupgh profit or loss 18,17.50,667 - -
Sub-total - Equily Instruments 453,73 51993
- REC Power Distribution Company Lid. Others (At Cost) 85,500 010 50,000 0.05
- REC Transmission Projects Comipany Ltd. Others (At Cost) - - 50,000 005
Sub-total - Subsidiaries 010 01
Joint Ventures
- Energy Efficiency Services Lid. Others {At Cost} 21,81,00,000 21810 21,81,00,000 218.10
Sub-tota - Joint Ventures Z18.10 Z18.10
Preference Shares (PS)
- Redeemable FS of Rattan India Power Ltd. Amartised cost 2,87,20,978 26.09 28720978 2293
- Optionally Convettible P5 of Rattan India Power Ltd. Fair value through prefit or loss 4,3303,616 4299 4,33,03,616 4541
Sub-total - Preference Shares 6908 6834
Others
- Uinits of 'Small is Beautiful' Venture Capital Fund Fair value through other comprehensive income 61,52,20¢ - 61,52,200 6.12
Sub-total - Others 61,52,200 - 612
Total Investments 1,909.77 231321
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13

Other financial assets
The Company has categorised all the components un

AS5109.

der 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind

(% in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Loans to Employees 35.94 34.61
Advances to Employees 041 0.30
Loans & Advances to Subsidiaries 416 399
Security Deposits 123 1.29
Recoverable from Govt. of India
- Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds 24,374.48 21,931.30
Other amounts recoverable 127.03 140.95
Less: Impairment Loss allowance (88.04) (30.85)
Other Amounts Recoverable (Net) 3899 110.10
Total (A to F) 24,399.21 22,081.59
Current tax assets (net)
(¥ in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Advance Income-tax & TDS 22747 1,811.17
Provision for Income Tax (72.35) (1,552.27)
Sub-Total 155,12 258.90
Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest 5.20 201.05
Provision for income tax for demand under contest (0.25) (67.29)
Sub-Total 4,95 133.76
Current tax assets (Net) 160.07 392,66

Deferred tax assets (net)

(¥ in Crores)

Particulars

As at 31-03-2021

As at 31-03-2020

Deferred Tax Assets (Nebt)

2,437.71

2,034.32
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Investment Property
@ in Crores)
Particulars Opening Balance Additions Sales/ adjustment Closing Balance
during the year during the year
As at 318t March 2021 0.01 - - .01
As at 31st March 2020 0.01 - - 0.01
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
(Zin Cror@_‘
Particulars Propenty, Plant & Equipment Capital Worky Intangible Other
in-Progress | Assets under | Intangible
Development Assets
Freehold Land | Right-of-Use Buildings Furniture & EDP Office Vehicles Total Immaovable Computer Computer
Land Fixtures Equipments | Equipments Property Software Software
Gross carrying value
As at 31.03.2019 110.39 1.59 31.74 10.65 19.92 18,50 0.40 193.19 196.94 159 17.25
Additions - - - 1.80 253 k) - 7.54 74.89 - 3.57
Borrowings Cost Capitalised 15.79
Disposals - - - 0.83 2.20 1.74 - 4.77 - 0.82 7.20
Ag at 31.03.2020 110.39 1.59 3174 11.62 20.25 19.97 .30 195.96 287.62 077 13.62
Additions - - 98.66 965 471 5.19 - 11312 131.70 - 0.02
Borrowings Cost Capitalised - 22.04
Disposals{ Adjustments - - - 072 3.28 797 - 11.97 105.69 - -
As at 31.03.2021 110.39 1.59 130.40 20.55 21.68 17.10 0.40 302.11 335.67 077 13.64
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation
As at 31.03.2015 - 0.31 358 6532 1337 1033 0.30 39.21 - 8.74
Charge for the year - ¢.01 0.48 0.68 290 263 0.02 672 - - 328
Adjustment for disposals - - - 0.34 1.89 074 - 297 - - 7.20
A3 at 31.03.2020 - 0.32 9.06 6.66 14.38 1222 0.32 2296 - . 4.82
Charge for the year - 0.03 075 0.94 269 2.38 0.02 6.81 - - 272
Adijustment for disposals - - - 0.20 2.60 498 - .78 - - -
As at 31.03.202t - 2.35 9,81 7.40 147 9.62 0.4 41.99 - - 7.54
Net black as at 31.03.2020 110.39 127 2268 4.96 5.87 775 0.08 153.00 287.62 0.77 B.80
Net bleck as at 31.03.2021 110,39 124 1208.59 13.15 7.23 7.48 0.06 260.12 335.67 0.77 5,10
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(A)
(B)
©
o)
{E)
®
G

Other non-financial assets

T in Crotes)

Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 8.84 50.38
Other Advances 334 512
Balances with Govt. Authorities 47.47 44.37
Pre-Spent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 3.45 -
Prepaid Expenses 4.29 0.17
Deferred Employee Cost 14.09 1321
Other Assets 0.02 002
Total (A to G) 81.50 113.27
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17 Debt Securities
The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind A5 109.

{2 in Crores
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost
(A) |Secured Long-Term Debt Securities
(i) Institutional Bonds 3,470.00 3,679.52 3,470.00 3,679.51
(i) 134EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 17,264.97 17,901.65 21,976.14 2278173
(iii) | Tax Free Bonds 12,648.41 13,090.89 12,648.41 13,088.03
(iv) {Bond App]ication Money 856.62 854.71 400.19 399.41
Sub-total (A) 34,240,00 35,526.77 38,494.74 39,948.68
(B) | Unsecured Long-Term Debt Securities
(i) Institutional Bends 1,69,868.60 1,75,719.53 1,48,662.20 1,53,685.20
(ii) | Infrastructure Bonds 11.07 2136 16.46 25.19
(iii} | Zero Coupon Bonds - - 1,364.85 1,363.91
(iv) | Foreign Currency Bonds 26,461.71 26,060.40 22,615.78 22,064.56
Sub-total (B) 1,96,341.38 2,01,801.29 1,72,659.29 1,77,138.86
(©) | Unsecured Short-Term Debt Securifies
(i) | Commercial Paper - - 2,925.00 2,889.68
Sub-total (C) - - 2,925.00 2,889.68
Total - Debt Securities £A+B+C! 2_‘12:0!581.38 2&7&28.06 2!14!079.03 2,19,977.22
Debt Securities issued in/ outside [ndia
(i) | Debt Securities in India 2,04,119.67 2,11,267 66 1,91,463.25 1,97,912.66
(ii) |Debt Securities outside India 26,461.71 26,060.40 22,615.78 22,064.56
Total - Debt Securities 2,30,581.38 2,37,328.06 2,14,079.03 2,19,977.22

18 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
The Company has categorised all borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of

ind AS 109.
(X in Crores
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Principal Ofs Amortised Cost | Principal Ofs Amortised Cost
(A) | Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings
(i} | Term Loans from Banks 29,938.58 29,953.76 18,899.78 18,900.72
(ii) |Term Loans from Financial Institutions 5,800.00 5,800.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
(iii) | Foreign Currency Borrowings 21,024.72 20,890.94 21,762.71 21,579.29
(iv) | FCNR (B) Loans - . 1,017.71 1,020.89
{v) | Term Loans from Govt. of India 10,000.00 10,325.12 10,000.00 10,326.81
{vi) ]Lease Liability 0.05 0.05 0.07 0.07
Sub-total (A) 66,763.35 66,969.87 52,680.27 52,827.78
@) | Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings
(i) | FCNR (B) Loans 5,329.10 5,335.01 5,955,49 5,964.91
(iiy ] Short Term Loans/ Loans repayable on demand from Banks 10,186.52 10,201.99 2,749.86 2,750.92
(iii} | Loans repayable on demand from Holding Company 3,000.00 3,000.49 - -
Sub-total {(B) 18,515.62 18,537.49 8,705.35 8,715.83
Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) (A to B) 85,278.97 85,507.36 61,385.62 61i543.61
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) in/ outside India
(i) |Borrowings in India 64,254.25 64,616.42 39,622.91 39,964.32
(ii) |Borrowings outside India 21,024.72 20,890.94 21,762.71 21,579.29
Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 85,278.97 85,507.36 61,385,62 61,543.61
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(ii)
(iii)

B
(i)

Subordinated Liabilities

The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in ac

cordance with the requirements of Ind A5109.

(Z in Crores)

Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost

195th Series - Subordinate Tier-II Bonds - 1,999.50 2,127.54 - -
7.96% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030
175th Series - Subordinate Tier-1T Bonds - 2,151.20 2,151.45 2,151.20 2,151.86
8.97% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029
115th Series - Subordinate Tier-I1 Bonds - 2,500.00 2,667.90 2,500.00 2,667.79
B.06% Redeemable at par on 31.05.2023
Total - Subordinated Liabilities 6,650.70 6,946.89 4,651.20 4,819,665
Subordinated Liabilities in/ outside India
Borrowings in India 6,650.70 6,946.89 4,651.20 4,819.65
Borrowings outside India - - - -
Total - Subordinated Liabilities 6,650.70 6,916.89 4,651.20 4,819.65
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{A)

(B)

(A)
{B)
<
(D)
(E)

Other Financial Liabilities

(¥ in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Unpaid Dividends 5.79 4.75
Bond Application Money refundable and interest accrued 0.01 -
thereon
Unpaid Principal & Interest on Bonds
- Matured Bonds & Interest Accrued thereon 49.77 39.13
- Interest on Bonds 18.95 17.97
Sub-total (C} 68.72 57.10
Funds Received from Govt. of India for Disbursement as £9,640.91 85,006.38
Subsidy/ Grant (cumulative)
Add: Interest on such funds (net of refund) 2.63 7.75
Less: Disbursed to Beneficiaries {cumulative) (88,575.58) (83,395.51
Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy/ Grant 1,067.96 1,618.62
Payables towards Bonds Fully serviced by Govi. of India 24,314.43 21,792.32
Payable towards funded staff benefits 9.00 0.38
Other Liabilities 477.20 89.53
Total (A to G) 25,943.11 23,562.70
Current tax liabilities (net)
{Zin Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Provision for Income Tax 2,702.52 -
Less: Advance Income-tax & TDS (2,691.90) -
Current tax liabilities (Net) 10.62 -
Provisions
(T in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Provisions for
Employee Benefits
Earned Leave Liability 18.00 15.95
Medical Leave Liability 209 21.87
Settlement Allowance 1.89 1.60
Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 413 425
Long Service Award 2.02 1.89
Incentive 47,92 52.57
Sub-total (A) 94.87 98.13
Others
Expected Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 9.09 8.38
Sub-total (B) 9.09 8.38
Total (A+B) 103.96 106.51
Other Non-financial Liabilities
{Z in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Sundry Liabilities Account (Interest Capitalisation) 5.07 6.57
Unbilled Liability towards Capital Account 28.53 -
Unamortised Fee on Undisbursed Loans 68.64 46.15
Advance received from Govt. towards Govt. Schemes 0.75 3.90
Statutory Dues 17.52 18.99
Total (A to E) 120.51 75.61
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(a)

(i)
(i)
(iv)
(v)
(vi}
(vii}
(B}
€y

Equity Share Capital

(T in Crores)

Ag at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Particulars
# No, of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authorised :
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 5.00,00,00,000 5,000.00 5,00,00,00,360 5,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :
Fully paid up Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92
Total 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92
Instruments entirely equity in nature
{Zin Crores)
. As at 31.03.2021 As at 37.03.2020
Parth Number Amount Number Amount
Fully paid up Perpetual Debts Instrument entirely equity in nature
of ¥ 10 lakhs each 5,584 558.40 -
Total 5,584 558,40 - -
Other Equity
{Zin Crores)
Particulars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Other Reserves
Special Reserve created u/s 36(1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 19,222.23 16,659.10
Reserve for Bad and doubtful debts w/s 36(1)(vita) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2,128.41 2,992.83
Reserve Fund u/s 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 3,804.00 2,131.00
Securities Premium 2,236.54 2,236.54
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account (573.16) (1,719.38)
General Reserve 9,650,083 6,923.09
Impairment Reserve - 793.29
Retzined Earnings 4,325.09 3409.74
Other Comprehensive Income (OCD
- Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 24.07 106.26
- Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges (165.61) (226.08)
- Cost of Hedging reserve 41.45 (204.75)
Totat - Other Equity 40,893.05 33,101.64

Additions and dedvctions to the components of "Other Equity” has been disclosed in *Statement of Changes in Eguity’.
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27 Interest Income

(¥ In Crores]
Particalars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-202¢
On Financial On Financiat On Financial On Financial ©On Financial On Financial
Assets d | Asaets d ] Assets d | Assets d | Assets d | Assets d
at Fair Value at Amortised at Fair Value at Fair Value at Amottised at Fair Value
through OCI Cost through Profitor |  through OCI Cost through Profit or
Loss Losa
(A} lInterest on Loan Assels
i) |Long term financing - 34,232.84 - - 29,245.18 -
Lexss: Rebate for timely payments/completion etc - {0.06) - - {0.08) -
Long term financing (net) - 34,232.78 - - 29,245.10 -
(i) [Short term financing - 69.98 - - 177.23 -
Sub-total (A} - 34,302.76 - - 29,422 33 -
(B} |Interestl from Inv ts
{D) {Interest from CP/ ICD - - - - 221 -
i} |Imterest from Govt. Securities - 7.16 - - 1.89 -
(iii) |Interest from Long Term Investmenis - 15.98 195.30 - 076 169.75
{ivh |mterest from Short Term Investments - 390 - - - -
Sub-total (B) - 27.04 195.30 - 286 169.75
{C) |Interest on Deposits with Banks
{i} |Interest from Deposits - 154.41 - - 6123 -
Sub-total {C) - 15441 - - 61.23 -
(D) |Other Interest Income
(i) |Interest from Staff Advances - 370 - - 4.45 -
(i) linterest from Subsidiary Companies - - - - 0.04 -
(idi} |Interest on Mobilisation Advance - 0.56 - - 239 -
(iv} |Unwinding of Discount of Security Deposits 0.01 - 0.02 -
Sub-total (D) - 427 - - 6.90 -
Total - t L {AbD) - 34,480.48 195.30 - 29,493.32 169.75
28 Dividend Income
n
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
_ Dividend from Subsidiary Companes 843 50.00
- Dividend from Other Investments 2797 39.04
L Total - Dividend Income 36.40 39.04
29 Fees and Commission Income
{2 in Crores)
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
Fees based Income 26.57 6.68
Prepayment Premium 3514 12.75
Fee for implementation of Govt. Schemes 33.67 16.52
Total - Pees and C issjon L 95.38 38.95
30 Other Income
(¢ in Crores
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
Fees from Training Courses 277 638
Interest from income Tax Refund 0.94 1.68
Miscellaneous Income 18.84 55.86
Total - Other Income 22.55 63,92
31 Finance Costs
Finance Costs have been incurred on financiat liabilities mmeasured at amortised cost.
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
(i) [Imterest on Borrowings
- Loans from Govt. of India 820.81 612.97
- Loans from Banks/ Financial Institutions 2,080.94 1,725.04
_ External Commercial Borrowings 643.83 917.26
- Lease Liability oM 0.0l
Sub-Total (i} 3,535.59 3,255.28
(i) {Interest on Debt Securities
- Domestic Debt Securities 15,423.20 13,930.38
_ Foreign Currency Debt Securities 1,183.12 854.73
- Commercial Paper 35.32 463.66
Sub-Total {ii) 16,641.64 15,248.77
{iii) |Interest on Subordinated Liabilities
- Subordinate Bonds 394.15 395.36
Sub-Total (iil) 394.15 395.36
{iv) |Other Interest Expense
- Swap Premium £894.62 108.83
- Interest on Advance Income Tax 2271 -
. Enterest on liability towards employee benefits 232 4.60
- Modification gairy loss on borrowings 009 -
Sub-Total {iv} 919.74 113.43
Tota! - Finance Costs 21,511.12 19,012.84
Less: Finance Costs Capitalised (22.04) (15.79)
Total - Finance Costs (Net) 21,489.08 18,997.05
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(i)
tidi}
{iv}
w

W
[81)

36

37

38

Net translation/ transaction exchange loss/ {gain)

&in

Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021

Net translation/ transaction exchange lossf (gain}

Total 330.26

Year ended 31-03-2020

The figures above include amortisation of net franslation! transaction exchange lossi (gain) on Long Ters Foreign
1st April 2018 amounting to £ 708.67 crores (Previous year T 675.95 erores).

Fees and corumission expenss

Currency Monetary Items recognised in

The finanicial statements before

(T in Crores}
[Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
Guarantee Fee - 13.29
Listing and Trusteeship Fee Q.78 1.51
Agency Fees a0 166
Credit Rating Expenses 3.33 3.05
Other Finance Charges 2.83 5.93
Total (i to v} 9.95 25.44
Net Gain/ (loss) on Fair Value Changes
ImCro
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2071 Year ended 31-03-2020
Net gain/ {loss) on financial instroments at Fair Value
through profit or 10ss
On trading Portfolio - -
Others
- Changes in fair value of Derivatives 545.92 (47.72)
- Changes in fair value of Long Term Investments 243 6.40
- Changes in fair valiue of Short-term MF investments 23.98 15.47
Sub-total {ii) 57233 (25.85)
Total (A) 572.33 (25.85)
Breakup of Fair Value Changes
- Realised 1,077.9% (60.07)
- Unrealised (505.58) 422
Total Net Gair/ (loss} on Fair Value Changes 57233 (25.88)

Fair value changes in this schedule are other than those erising on eccount of accrued interest incomef expense and represents changes in fair valve of deripatives designated as econontic

hedges not designated under hedge accounting and ineffective hedge

Impairment on financial instruments

% in Crores)

Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
Om fitrancial instraments On financial instrements On financial ingtrumentis On financial instraments
measired at FVOCE d at Amortised Cost d at FVOCT measured at Amortised Cost
“Lpans * - 2,363.33 - $84.91
- Others - 56.29 - 4.65
Total (i+ii) - 2,419.62 - $59.56
~ircludes € 0,71 croves (Previous year T 838 erores) towards impairment allowance o Letters of Comfort.
Employee Benefits Expense
(&in Crores%
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Yeat ended 31-03-2020
- Salaries and Allowances 101.66 129.00
- Contribution to Provident Fund and Okher Funds 1361 15.19
- Expenses towards Fost Employment Benefits 4.87 5.07
- Rent towards Residential Accomodation for Employees 219 1.58
- Staff Welfare Expenses 22.51 2495
Tatal 144.84 175.79
Depreciation and amortization
{2 in Crores!
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
~ Depreciation on Property. Plant & Equipment 6.81 6.72
_ Amartization on Intangible Assels 272 328
Total 9.53 10.00
Corp te Social Respomsibility Exp
(2 in Crores)
Particulars Year ended 31-93-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
- Direct Expenditure 13978 253.64
- Overheads 4.54 4.76
Tokak 144.32 258,40




39

41

Other Expenses

(2 in Crol
Year ended 31-03-2020

Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021
- Travelling and Conveyance 8.00 13.69
- Publicity & Promotion Expenses 4.90 573
- Repairs and Maintenance 11.50 11.42
_ Rent, taxes and enhergy costs 13.15 12.97
- Insurance Charges 0.10 0.13
- Communication costs 223 3.24
- Printing & stationery 0.86 .70
- Director's sitting fees 0.10 019
- Auditors’ fees and expenses 143 1.52
- Legal & Professional Charges 9.86 11.81
- Net Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipmens 403 1.69
- Govl. Scheme Monitoring Expenses 2518 217
- Miscellaneous Expenses 2537 4444
Tatal 106.71 131.70
Tax Expense
(% in Crores)
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
- Current tax expense 2,683.62 1,552.99
_ Current tax expense/ {benefif) pertaining to earlier years 223.28 62.88
Sub-total - Current Tax 2,906.40 1,615.87
- Deferred tax expense/ (credit) (512.55) 48126
Total 2,394.35 2,097.13
Earnings per Share
Particulars Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
Numerator
Profit for the year from contirwing operations as per Staternent 8,361.78 4,886.16
of Profit and Loss {Z in Crores)
Profit for the year from continuing and discontinued, 8,361.78 4,886.16
operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Z in Crores)
Denominator
Weighted average Number of equity shares 1,97,49,18,000 1,97,49,18,000
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (in T for an equity share of 4134 24,74
2 10 each) {for continuing operations)
Bosic & Diluted Egmings per Share {in ¥ for an equity share of] 42,34 24.74

% 10 each) (for continuing and discontinued operations)
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Annexure-G

REC Limited
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Dethi - 110003, CIN: LA0101DL1969G 01005095
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021
(% in Crores]
S. No. |Particulars Note As at Asat
No. 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
ASSETS
[§ 1) Financial Assets
(@) ] Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,179.24 1,717.71
{b) | Bank balances other than (a) above 7 2,123.58 2,257.45
(c) | Trade receivables 8 140.07 1039.07
{d) | Derivative financial instruments 9 2,311.22 3,318.85
(e) Loans 10 3,65,261.49 3,12,083.50
| mvestments 11 1,723.68 212711
() Other financial assets 12 2441988 22,101.32
Total - Financial Assets (1) 3,97,259.16 3,43,715.01
() | Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 13 168.92 409.94
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 14 2,461.03 2,050.57
{c) Investment Property 15 0.0 0.01
(d) | Property, Plant & Equipment 16 260.70 156.97
(&) | Capital Work-in-Progress 16 335.67 287.62
() | Intangible Assets Under Development 16 0.77 0.77
{g) | Other Intangible Assets 16 6.15 8.82
(h) ] Other non-financial assets 17 102.67 132.37
() | mvestments accounted for using equity method 11 257.74 258.47
Total - Non-Financial Assets (2) 3,593.66 3,305.54
3) |Assets classified as held for sale 18 14.05 9,53
Total ASSETS (1+2+3) 4,00,866.87 3,47,030.08
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
D Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments 9 846.31 1,325.73
(b) | Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of MSMEs 19 0.01 0.15
(if) total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 19 61.50 46.00
(c} Debt Securities 20 2,37,269.11 2,19,918.25
{d} | Borrowings (ather than debt securities) 21 85,507.36 61,550.66
(9] Subordinated Liabilities 22 6,946.89 4,819.65
[6)] Other financial liabilities 23 26,222.35 23,782.21
Total - Financial Liabilities (1) 3,56,853.53 3,11,442.65
{2) |} Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) §Current tax liabilities (net} 24 14.40 -
(b) ] Provisions 25 104.68 107.09
() Other non-financial liabilities 26 130.25 83.23
Total - Non-Financial Liabilities (2) 249.33 190.32
(3) [Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 18 .08 0.68
) | EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 27 1,974.92 1,974,92
(b} [ Instruments Entirely Equity In Nature 28 558.40 -
©) | Other equity 29 41,230.61 33,4215
Total - Equity (8) 43,763.93 35,396.43
Total - LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (14243+4) 4,00,866.87 3,47,030.08
Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies 1105
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REC Limited

Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Peihi - 110003, CIN: 140101D1L1969GOI005095

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2021

(% in Crores}

$. No. |Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
Na, 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Revenue from Qperations
(i) Interest Income 30 34,693.35 29,671.78
(ii) ] Dividend Income 31 2797 36.94
{ii} | Fees and Commission Income 32 95.38 38.95
(iv) | Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes 38 57233 {25.85}
(v) [Sale of services 33 16355 182.11
L Total Revenue from Operations (i to v) 35,552.68 29,903.93
I. | Cther Income 34 n72 77.27
1. | Total income (I+II} 35,575.40 29,981.20
Expenses
(i Finance Costs 35 21,48%.05 18,991.30
(i) | Net translation/ transaction exchange loss 36 330.26 2,357.%0
(iii) | Pees and commission Expense ¥ 9.95 25.44
(iv) | Impairment on financial instruments 39 244594 919.49
(v} JCost of services rendered 40 88.51 7161
(vi) | Employee Benefits Expenses 11 163.62 193.15
(vii} | Depreciation and amortization 42 10.86 11.77
{vili} | Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 43 146.27 259.29
(ix) | Other Expenses 44 109.38 130.41
IV. | Total Expenses (i to ix) 24,793.84 22,960.36
V. | Profit before Tax (III-{V) 10,781.56 7,020.84
V. |Share of Profit/Loss of Joint Venture accounted for using equity method (1.97%) 9.14
VL  |Profit before Tax (I-EV+V) 10,779.59 7,029.98
VIL | Tax Expense 45
) Current tax 2,92097 1,645.06
(i) ] Deferred Tax (519.62) 412.65
Total Tax Expense (i+ii) 2,401.35 1,057.71
VII. | Profit for the periad 8,378.24 4,972.27
IX. |Other comprehensive Income/{Loss)
(i) [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans {14.26) (2.87)
(b} | Changes in Fair Value of FVOKCI Equity Instruments 166.53 {129.20)
{c} Share of Other Comprehensive Income/ {loss) of Joint Venture accounted for using ©.05) ©.12)
ecuitvy method
(d) | Income tax relating to these items
- Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans 3.59 0.72
- Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Equity Instruments {6.01) 12.39
Sub-Total {i) 149.80 (119.08)
{fi} [ Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) JEffective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 80.81 (302.12)
(b) |Coast of hedging resetve 329.00 {273.61)
@ Share of Other Comprehensive Income/ {loss) of Joint Venture accounted for using 129 (3.94)
eauitv method
{d) [Income tax relating to these items
-Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges (20.34) 76.04
- Cost of hedging reserve {82.80) 68.86
Sub-Total (i) 307.96 43477)
Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the period (i+ii) 457.76 (553.85)
X. | Total comprehensive Income for the period (Vill+IX) 8,836.00 4,418.42
X1. |Basic & Diluted Earnings per Equity Share of 2 10 each (in T} 46
(1) | For continuing operations 42,42 25.18
(2) | For continuing and discontinued operations 42,42 25.18
JCompany Overview and Significant Accounting Policies 1to5




REC Limited
Registered Office - Care-4, SCOPE Comples, 7, Lodhi oad, New Deathi - 110063, CIN: L4001 DL1969G 01005083

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March 2021
A Equity shant capital

(¥ in Crores]
F As at 31-03-2001 At at 31-03-2020
Opening Balance 197492 197452
Changes in equity share capital during the vear - -
Closing Balamoe 197492 197492
& Inatreivents entirely xquity in nature
(% in Crones)
[Farteulars s at 51032020 “As at 31032070
Opeping Balance - -
("hanges in instruments entirely enuity in nature during the vear 548,40 -
Closing Belance 558.40 -
€ Other Equity
{¥ in Crores)
Particulary HReserves & Surplus Share of Other FVOCl- Efective Costs of Total
Special Reserve for |Reserve Fund| Debenture Securities | Capital Forelgn Ceneral | lmpairawnt| Retzined | Comprehensive Equity Forton of | Hedging
Reserve Bad and u/n 45-IC of | Redemption | Premium Rederve Currency Reserve Reserve Eamingd  |[nconse (loss) afl Instruments | Cash Flow reserve
areated ws doubtiul |Reserve Bank| Reserve Account Monetary Joint Venture Hedges
36{1) (yili) of | debis ufs | of India Ack, Teem accountad for
the Income | 36{1)(viia) of 1934 Translation using equity
Tax Art, 1961 | the Income Difference method
Tax Axt, 193 Account
Balanoe av at S1at March 2013 15,136.78 3,034.72 1,253.00 131822 2,236.54 - 764.82) 5,230.54 - 5088.1% 146 136.58 - - 25742
Frofit for the period - - - - - - - - - 497227 - - 4497227
Remeasurement vf Defined Benefit Plans - - . - - . - - - (215) - - - - (219
Recognition through Other Comprehensivel - - - - - - - - - @12y {3%4) (116.81) (226.08) (204.75) (551.70)
Incrme iner of taxes)
[Total Comprehensive Income - - - - - - - - - 419M.00 3.54) t116.51) {226.08H (204.75) 441842
Ottrer adjustments
'I'ransterred tof (from) Retained Eamings 1,522.32 336,52 978,00 4915 - - - - 793,29 (3,679.28)| - - -
Transferrad to General Reserve - {378.41) - (1,367.28) - - - 1.745.69 - - - - - - -
Reclassification  of  gainy  floss) on sakd] - - - - - - - (86.19) #6.19 - - -
et ineuighment of FYOCT eanity insmiment
Foreign Currency Translation Loss on lkeng tedm| - - - - - - {1,520.51) - - (1.630.51)
tmanetary itets during the period
Gain on Increase in share in FESL - - - - - 470 - - . - - - - 470
Ataortisation during the perind - - - - - - 675.95 - - - - - - B7ZGS
Coupon expenses on Perpetual Debt Instruments: - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Issuc expenses 6N Perpetual Debt Lnstruments - - - - - . - - - - - - - -
Total- Other adjushments 152232 1.99) 978.00 (1318.13) - 47 (954.56), 1,745.69 b sl 13.765.47) + 86.19 - - {549.86)
Dhividends - . - - - - - - - {2172.41} - - - {27241
Dividend Distribation Tax . - - - - - - - - (446,063 - (446,06}
Tatal- Transaction with owners - - - - B - - - - (251847 - - - (2,618.47H]
Balance a» at 31st March 2020 16,659 10 299283 2,131.00 - 2,236.54 ATD {1,719.38)] 697629 329 367428 (2. 48) 106.26 (X26.08) {264.75)! 33471 .51
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|Particulars Reservas & Surpius Share of Othar | FYOCH Effective Costs of Total
Special | Reserse for |Reserve Fund| Debenture | Securities | Capital | Forelgn Getveral | Umpairment| Remitied | Comprahensive |  Equity | Partionef | Hedging
Reserve Bad and uis 45-IC of | Redemption | Premiutn Reserve | Curmency Reserve Reserve Earnings | (neome/ (louz} of| Inatruments | Cash Flow reserve
created ufs | doubtful |Rescrrc Bank| Reserre Accoutit Monstary Jaint Venture Hedges
36(1h (viki) of | debtsw/s | of India Ast, [tem accounted for
the fncome | 36(1){vila) of 1934 Transhation using equity
Tax Act, 1961 | the Income Dikference method
‘Balance av at 313t March 2020 16,659.10 299253 2,131.00 - 223554 470 (1,719.38)! 697623 793.29 367428 (2.48} 106.26 (226.08) 2478 334191
Profit for the period - - - - - - - - - 837824 - - - v 8376.24
of Defined Benefit Plans - - - - {10.67)| - . - (1067}
Recognition  thmough  Otiwt  Comprehensive] - - - {0.05)| 1.2 16052 6047 246.20 468.43
Income (her o taves)
[ Tetal Comprehensive lncome - - - - - - - - - B.367.52 119 160-52 0.47 14620 8836.00
['Transferred tof { from) Retained Eamings 256213 28813 1673.00 - 98110 - (5,506.36} - . . - -
Transerred tof from) Cieneral Reserve - 11,152.55) - - 1,945.83 179329 - - - - - o)
Reclassification  of galy (s} on  sale/] . - - - - B 271 - (2a2.71)) B - -
extinguishment of FVOC] squity instrument
Foreign Currency Translation Loss on {ong tem, - - 437.65 - - - - 437.65
inctwtary items during the period
Amoitisation durir the period - - 70857 - - - - 708,57
Issue expenses on Pampetual Detxt Instrumends . - - - - - . .70} . - .7y
Total Other adiustments 21563.13 (664.42) 1673.00 - - 14622 292693 (793.29) (3,263.35) - 24271} - - 1,145
Dividends . - - - - - - - - (217241 - 1217241}
Dividerd Distribution Tax - - - - - - - . -
o ith owners - - : - - . s - - — 21734 - - - - [P 37X H
|_1xp22l 222411 = 470 16 : 440601 iR} 2407 assénl  a43] 012306 |




REC Limited

Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003, CIN: L40161DL1969GOI005095
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2021

(% in Crores)

PARTICULARS Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
'A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Net Profit before Tax 10,779.59 7,029,938
Adjustments for:
1, Loss on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment {net) 4.69 1.69
2, Depredation & Amortization 10.86 11.78
3. Impairment losses on Financial Instruments 244594 91948
4. Adjustments towards Effective Interest Rate in respect of Loans 32.61 53.02
5. Adjustments towards Effective Interest Rate in respect of Borrowings 152.19 62.31
6. Fair Value Changes in Derivatives (545.92) 47.72
7. Fair Value Changes in FVTPL Instruments (243) (6.40)
8. Interest on Commercial Paper 3532 463.66
9. Interest Accrued on Zero Coupon Bonds 81.78 10529
10. Loss/ (Gain) on Exchange Rate fluctuation 52671 2,342.27
11, Loss/ (Gain) on sale of invetsments - (3.16}
12. Provision made for Interest on Advance Income Tax 271 -
13. Share of Profit/Loss of Joint Venture accounted for using equity method 1.97 (9.14)
Operating profit before Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities 13,546.02 11,018.50
Inflow / (Outflow) on account of :
1. Loan Assets (56,522.42) (41,664.59)
2. Derivatives 711.20 (407.70)
3. Other Operating Assets (1,827.24) (5,112.80)
4, Operating Liabilities 3,264.58 5485.70
Cash flow from Operations (40,827.86) {30,680.89)
1. Income Tax Paid {including TDS) (2,696.20) {1,777.35)
2. Income Tax refund 11.73 16.67
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (43,512.33) (32,441.57)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
1. Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.35 011
2. Investment in Property, Plant & Equipment (inch, CWIP & Capital {73.30) (97.51)
Advances)
3. Investment in Intangible Assets (including intangible assets under (0.95) (2.75)
development}
4, Finance Costs Capitalised (22.04) {15.79)
5. Investment in Equity Shares of Joint Venture (EESL} - {71.60)
6. Sale of Equity Shares of Indian Energy Exchange Limited 249.92 4.23
7. Salef{Investment) of/in shares of associate companies (Net) {0.40) 0.30
8, Redemption/ (Investment) in Debt Securities (net) 1,357.65 50.31
9. Redemption/ (Investment) in Government Securities (net) (647.78) -
10. Maturity/(Investment} of/in Corporate and Term deposits (2.93) (18.31)
11, Realisation of investments accounted for using equity method - 2.10
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 860.52 (148.91)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
1. Issue/ {Redemption) of Rupee Debt Securities (Net) 15,499.66 21,293.39
2. Issue/ (Redemption) of Commercial Paper (net) (2,925.00) (5,270.30%
3. Raising/ {Repayments) of Rupee Term Loans! WCDL from Govt/ Banksf Fls (net) 26,27047 7.904.65
4. Raising/ (Repayments) of Foreign Currency Debt Securities and Borrowings (net) 2,884.39 12,617.57
5. Raising/ (Redemption) of Subordinated Liabilities (ret) 1,999.50 -
6. Issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments entirely equity in nature 558.40 -
7. Issue Expenses on Perpetual Debt Instruments entirely equity in nature {0.94) -
8. Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares (2,172.41) {2,172.41)
9. Payment of Corporate Dividend Tax - (446.06)
10. Repayment towards Lease Liability (0.73) (0.64)
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 42,113.34 33,926.20
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents (538.47) 1,335.72
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1,717.71 381.99
(Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 1,179.24 1,717.71
Duting the year, the Group has received Dividend of ¥ 27.97 crores (previous year ¥ 36.94 crores). Further, during the year, the Company has paid an

amount of % 150.31 crores (previous year 2 259.29 crores) towards Corporate Social Responsibility.




Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents as at end of the year are:

T in Crores)
PARTICULARS Year ended 31-03-2021 Year ended 31-03-2020
- Cash in Hand (including postage & imprest) 0.12 0.06
- Balances with Banks 24782 1,195.40
- Short-term Deposits with Scheduled Banks 931.30 522.25
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 117924 1,717.71
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

(T in Crores)
Particulars Opening Cash Flows | Movements Other Adjustments Closing
Balance during the in Interest Exchange EIR Balance
period (neb) Accrued * Differences | Adjusiments

Year ended 31-03-2021
Rupee Debt Securities 1,94,964.01 15,499.66 657.70 - 87.34 2,11,208.71
Commercial Paper 2,889.68 (2,925.00) - - 35.32 -
Rupee Term Loans/ WCDL 32,983.45 26,270.47 27 44 - - 59,281.36
Foreign Currency Debt Securities & other Borrowings 50,629.65 2,584.39 16.81 (1,392.24) 147.74 52,286.35
Subordinated Liabilities 4,819.65 1,999.50 128.90 - (1.16) 6,946.89
Total 2,86,286,44 43,729.02 830.85 {1,392.24) 269.24 3,29,723.31
Year ended 31-03-2020
Rupee Debt Securities 1,72,895.12 21,293.39 729.78 - 41.72 1,94,964.01
Commercial Paper 7.696.32 (5,270.30) - - 463.66 2,889.68
Rupee Term Loans/ WCDL 24,884.25 7.904.65 194.55 - - 32,983.45
Foreign Currency Debt Securities & Bonds 33,950.25 12,617.57 73.78 3,930.12 57.93 50,629.65
Subordinated Liabilities 4,818.76 - 0.61 - 0.28 4,819.65
Total 2,44,248.70 36,545.31 998.72 3,930.12 563.59 2,86,286.44

* Movement in Interest Accrued has been considered in 'Operating Liabilities’ as Cash Flow from Operating Activities.,
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REC Limited
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
CIN: L40101DL1969G 01005095

Notes to Accounts

Company Overview

REC Limited (“REC” or the “Company” or the “holding company”) was incorporated in the year 1969.
The Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal
place of business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, India. The books of
accounts and financial statements are maintained at Plot no. I-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, Haryana, in
addition to the registered office of the Company. The Company has offices spread across the country,
mainly in the State Capitals and one training centre at Hyderabad.

The Company is a Government Company engaged in extending financial assistance across the power
sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non-Banking
Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

REC is a leading Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the principal products of REC are
interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and

Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure,

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges.

The Company together with its subsidiaries is hereinafter referred to as ‘the Group’.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation
These Consolidated Financial Statements comply with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines.

The consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31* March 2021 were authorized and
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28t May 2021.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and are in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind
AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms/ guidelines.

Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are as

given below:




31

3.2

33

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary

Subsidiary is the entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power over
the investee, is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases. The Group combines the financial statements of the
holding company and its subsidiary line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity,

income and expenses,

Equity accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise of the interests in associates and joint

venture.

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity, over which the Company has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Interests in associates are
accounted for using the equity method. These interests are initially recognised at cost, which includes
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the
Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) of equity-accounted investees
until the date on which significant influence ceases. However, in case where it is assessed that the
investment/ interest in associates is held for sale, the interest in associates is accounted for under Ind AS
105.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets

of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost
which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements
include the Group's share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) of equity-

accounted investees until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted
investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that here is

no evidence of impairment.

Basis of Preparation and Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant
accounting policies. These policies have been applied consistently for all the periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

Functional and preseniation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR’) which is also the functional

currency of the Group

»:,“‘-\
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34 Income recognition
Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and

rate applicable.

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) costs
and expenses of REC (ii) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) overdue interest
including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted first, except for
credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only after the
complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest including
interest tax, if any. The recovery under One Time Settlement (OTS)/ Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
(IBC) proceedings is appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery
thereafter, towards interest and other charges, if any.

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR), ie. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized on
an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately

under the head interest income.

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire interest
amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted against the

corresponding interest income.

Income from Government schemes
Income of agency fee on Government schemes is recognized on accrual basis based on the services

rendered.

Dividend income
Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into account on

acerual basis when REC’s right to receive payment is established.

Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as established
only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognised

separately under the head ‘Dividend Income’.

Other services
Fees/ charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on

accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Group in the year of receipt.

Revenue from sale of services
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group

and the revenue can be reliably measured.
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The Group uses the principles laid down by the Ind AS 115 to determine that how much and when
revenue is recognized, what is the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues efc. In

accordance with the same, revenue is recognised through a five-step approach:

(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;

(iii) Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts

and other indirect taxes.

In Cost Plus Contracts - Revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual items of expenditures

plus proportionate margin as per contract;

In Fixed Price Contracts ~ Revenue is recognised on the basis of stage of completion of the contract. The
Group has assessed that the stage of completion is determined as the proportion of the total time
expected to complete the performance obligation to that has lapsed at the end of the reporting period,
which is an appropriate measure of progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance
obligations under Ind AS115.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances
change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss

in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects put
on tariff based bidding is accounted for in the year in which it is reasonably certain that the ultimate

collection of the professional charges will be made.

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) documents is credited to the respective SPV and sale
proceeds of Request for Qualification (RFQ) documents is retained by the Group and accounted as

income of the Group.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or construction
of a qualifying asset, till the time such a qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended use sale, are
capitalized. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its

intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the

effective interest rate method.

3.6 Earnings per share
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

To calculate diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Group using the

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re-
measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in
the consolidated financial staternents before 01¢ April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in a
“Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance

period of such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated

using the exchange rates at the transaction date).

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets mainly comprise of computer software which is initially measured at cost. Such assets
are recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow
to the Group.

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value)

Al intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management estimates the

useful life of intangible assets to be five years.

Intangible Assets under Development

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as
‘Intangible assets under development’ till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the
acquisition/ development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are

classified under ‘Capital Advances’.

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.




39 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Recognition and initial measurement
Land
Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined,
related carrying amounts are not depreciated.
Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as

finance lease and is amortised over the lease term.

Other Tangible assets
PPE other than tand is initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including any costs

directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Group’s management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the Statement of

Profit and Loss as incurred.

Subsequent measuretient { depreciation method, useful lives, residual value, and impairment)

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assels as
prescribed under Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is in use
for more than 15 days, instead of charging the same on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase/sale.
Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided @ 100%.

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial
year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

De-recognition

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Work-in-Progress

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as ‘Capital work-in-progress.” The
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates
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are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition/ construction of PPE
which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under ‘Capital Advances.’

Lease accounting:
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and related lease liability in connection with all former

operating leases except for those identified as short-term or low-value lease.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is defined as
‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period

of time in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are

whether:

- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group

- the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the
contract

- the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of
the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease

commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The

Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is
readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be

exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for
interest. 1t is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-

substance fixed payments.
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When the Jease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use
asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

Investment property

Investment properties are the assets which have undetermined future use. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the

purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group beyond one year. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of

Profit and Loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
The Group only has land as an investment property, which is not depreciated.

De-recognition

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognized.

Financial Instruments
A Finandial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured
initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described
below.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories
upon initial recognition:

s Amortized cost

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)

« Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or equity instruments at FVOCI are subject to review for
impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a




financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different critetia to determine impairment are

applied to each category of financial assets, which are described below.

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the

following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized on financial assets carried at amortized cost.

Modification of cash flows

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the
renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss
in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present
value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified
financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are either do not meet the criteria for amortized
cost classification or are equity instrtuments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are
designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also fall into this
category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge
accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or
losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by

reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise
would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign
exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to
a party to the contract.

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts
or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair vatue though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging

instruments.




Financial assets at FVOCI

EVOCT financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity investment
classified as FVOCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income and reported within the FVQCI reserve within equity,
except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such gains
and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment.

However, the Group may transfer the same within equity.

De-recognition of financial assets

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Group derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions
have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference
recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been

recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) are derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Group also derecognizes the financial asset if
it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at

fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financia! liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit

or loss.

Hedge accounting

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements:

_ there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument

- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship

- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the entity actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity
actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is
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effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges
are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in

equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification

adjustment within other comprehensive income.

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship, in accordance with the Group’s risk management objective and strategies. The
documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk(s)
being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effectiveness

requirements.

Impairment of financial assets

Loan assets

The Group follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial

recognition as summarised below:

e Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date.

e Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that do not have objective evidence of impairment.

+ Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL

for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default

and Loss Given Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD} - The PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its

obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument.

Loss Given Default (LGD) — LGD represents the Company’s expectation of loss given that a default
occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually be

lost post recoveries in case of a default.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding, interest
accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default.

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD
and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an

ongoing basis.

Financial assets other than Loans

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected

credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.
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To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at
the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition. The Group also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet

date.

Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped

pursuing the recovery.

Assets/ Disposal Groups held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is
considered as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Group; are
available for immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed for sale at a price
and the sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification.

Such non-current assets are measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs.

Non-current assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and are
not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.

Where the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an entity, it classifies
investment in the entity (i.e. all the assets and liabilities of that entity) as held for sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-
term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subiject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in
equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of
Directors respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are
recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for payment by the Group.

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the
prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the eatliest period
presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are
restated.

Prepaid Expenses
A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition.
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Taxation

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCI or
directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the

computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to
apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the

same tax authority.

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in
profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive

income or equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid
annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non-

monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution
plans as under:

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions in respect of the
employees into a separate fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the Group towards




321

defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which the contributions

relate.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, Post-Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF) and Other
Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit plans covering
eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference 1o the employee’s length of service, final salary, and other defined
parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Group, even if plan assets for
funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside.

The Group's obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The
liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of
the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets.
Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries.

Actuarial gainsflosses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other

Comprehensive Income.

Other long-term employee benefits:
Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one-
year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are

charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined.

Loan to employees at concessional rate

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and transaction
value is recognised as deferred employee cost, which is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of the Loan, the
unamortised deferred employee cost on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected

remaining period of the loan on a prospective basis.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and
amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions
are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most
reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money

is material.

A contingent liability is disclosed for:
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e Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of
the Group or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot
be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered

improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party concerning the
obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not

exceed the amount of the related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the

related asset is disclosed.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a Lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and

best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

¢ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observabie

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consotidated financial statements regularly, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between jevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Implementation of New/ Modified Standards

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind AS.
The Group has analysed the impact of these amendments which is not material to the Group, except for
certain amendments as mentioned below:

Amendment to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109 with respect to Interest rate benchmark reform

It aims to modify some specific hedge accounting requirements to provide relief from the potential
effects of uncertainty caused by the interest rate benchmark (IBOR) reform. Further details on Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform and its impact on the Group are available in the financial statements.

Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, exXpenses, assets
and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant management judgments

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ Hability - The extent o which deferred tax assets can be recognized
is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized. Further, the Management has no intention to make withdrawal from the Special
Reserve created and maintained under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and thus, the
special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. Hence, the Group does not

create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability on Undistributed Reserves of Group Companies — The
applicable tax laws provide for tax deduction in respect of dividend income from equity invesiments, to
the extent of dividend declared by the Company to its shareholders during the year. Considering the
historical information and dividend distribution policy of the Company, the Company does not expect
any tax liability on the undistributed reserves of the Group Companies, as and when such reserves are
distributed. Hence, the Company does not create any deferred tax Hability on undistributed reserves of

Group Companies.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could resuit in

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.




Investment in SPVs — Transmission projects are managed as per the mandate from Government of
India and the Group does not have the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of these projects
unilaterally. The Group therefore considers its investment in respective SPVs as associates having
significant influence despite the Company holding 100% of their paid-up equity share capital.

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - Interest income on credit-impaired
loan assets is not being recognised as a matter of prudence, pending the outcome of resolutions of

stressed assets.

Significant estimates

Impact of Covid-19 Outbreak - The Group has considered the possible impacts of COVID-19 in
preparation of these financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, Liquidity and
going concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on
revenue recognition and impact on effectiveness of its hedges. The Group has carried out this
assessment based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to
these financial statements and expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of
COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19. The
extent to which the Covid-19 pandemic will impact the Group will depend on future developments,
which are uncertain, including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the
Covid-19 pandemic and any further action by the Government or the Group to contain its spread or
mitigate its impact.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the
utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of
future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and

the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used

for fair valuation.

Income Taxes — Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of

expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset.




Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) — The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial
assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions
about future economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and
resulting losses). The Group makes significant judgments about the following while assessing expected
credit loss to estimate ECL:

» Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;

o Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/ market and the associated ECL; and

» Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL.

 Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in
case of default)
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6  Cash and cash equivalents

( in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
_ Cash in Hand {including postage & imprest) 0.12 0.06
- Balances with Banks
- in current accounts 24782 1,195.40
- deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 931.30 522.25
Total (Cash & Cash Equivalents) 1,179.24 1,717.71
7  Bank Balances (other than Cash and Cash Equivalents)
(% in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
- Barmarked Balances with Banks
- For unpaid dividends 5.79 4.75
- For govt. funds for onward disbursement as grant 1,323.55 1,817.72
- Farmarked Term Deposits
- For govt. funds for further disbursement - 3298
- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order 0.56 0.53
- Term Deposit held as Margin Money against Bank Guarantee 0.25 -
- Balances with banks not available for use pending 856,62 400.19
allotment of securities
-Other Term deposits 36.81 1.28
Total (QOther Bank Balances) 2,223.58 2,257.45
- Term Deposits with remaining maturity more than 3 70.02 33.90
months but less than 12 months
- Term Deposits with original maturity more than 12 0.97 0.36
months
8 Trade Receivables
(¥ in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
(A) |Unsecured, Considered good 124.45 86.27
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss {19.12} (13.66)
105.33 72.61
(B) |Trade receivables which have significant increse in credit risk 55.32 52.01
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (20.58) (15.55)
34.74 36.46
(C) |Credit impaired receivables 46.80 33.60
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (46.80) (33.60)
Total Trade Receivables (A+B+C) 140.07 109.07
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9  Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into derivatives for hedging foreign exchange risks and interest ra
hedges that are either designated as effective hedges under
shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorde

the hedge accounting requ
d as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts.

te risks. Derivatives held for risk management purposes include
jrements or hedges that are economic hedges. The table below

Part1
(% in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Notional | Fair Value - | Fair Value - Notional | Fair Value - | Fair Value -
oun Jﬂ___@ﬂﬁi_ﬁmgm__&sﬂ___@ilﬁi_
(i) |Currency Derivatives
- Spot and forwards - - - 565.39 27.62 -
- Currency swaps 2,854.54 43.07 121.08 3,094.32 432,94 -
- Others
- Call Spread 4,263.27 271.36 - 6,068.56 504.12 -
- Seagull Options 20,482.08 1,657.19 43.25 22,321.22 2,212.46 -
Sub-total (i) 27,599.89 1,971.62 164.33 32,049.49 3,177.14 -
(ii) |Interest Rate Derivatives
- Forwatd Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 25,035.68 339.60 403.65 29,056.52 141.71 586.06
Sub-total (ii) 25,035.68 339.60 403.65 29,056.52 141.71 586.06
(iii) |Other derivatives
- Reverse cross currency swaps 4,547.00 - 278.33 4,347.00 - 739.67
Total - Derivative Financial Instruments (i + ii+iii) 57,182.57 2,311.22 846.31]  65,453.01 3,318.85 1,325.73




Part11
Included in Part [ are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as below:

(% in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Notional | Fair Value - | Fair Value - Notional | Fair Value - | Fair Value -
| Amgunts | Assets | | Liabilities | Amounts | Assels | Liabilities |
(i) |CashFlow Hedging
- Currency Derivatives
- Currency Swaps 2,756.43 23.86 121.08. 8,638.68 232 303.14
- Others
- Call Spread 1,837.62 77.74 - 1,884.65 97.16 -
- Seagull Options 20,482.08 1,657.19 43.25 11,348.70 1,662.20 -
- Interest Rate Derivatives
_ Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 13,055.84 - 318.18 9,498.62 524 134.45
Sub-total (i) 38,131.97 1,758.79 482.51 31,370.65 1,766.92 437.59
(i) |Undesignated Derivatives 19,050.60 552.43 363.80 34,082.36 1,551.93 838.14
Total - Derivative Financial Instruments {ivid) 57,182.57 2,311.22 $46.31 65,453.01 3,318.85 1,325.73

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value at each reporting date, The changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in effective cash flow hedges are recogrised in OCI. For undesignated derivatives, the changes in the fair value are recognised in the

Statement of Profit & Loss.
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(A)
(i)
(i)

B
(i
(i)
(i}
{iv)

(e ]1))
(@
(i)

{CKID

Loans

The Company has categotised all loans at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind A5 109.

% in Crores)

Farticalars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Principal O/s | Amortised Cost | Principal Ofs Amortised Cost
Loans i
Term Loans 3,77,041.98 3,78,090.36 3,21,526.76 3,23,177.53
Working Capital Loans 376.17 377.24 897.92 902.01
Total (A) - Gross Loans 3,77418.15 3,78,467.60 3,22,424.68 3,24,079.54
Less: Impairment loss allowance {13,206.11) (13,206.11) (11,996.04) (11,996.04)
Total (A) - Net Loans 3,64,212.04 3,65,26149 3,10,428.64 3,12,083.50
Security Details
Secured by tangible assets 2,56,744.52 2,57.329.46 2,44,034.67 2,45,113.22
Secured by intangible assets - - - -
Covered by Bank/ Govt. Guarantees 1,01,071.53 1,01,456.48 58,166.76 58,684.29
Unsecured 19,602.10 19,681.67 20,22325 20,282.03
Total (B) - Gross Loans 3.77,418.15 3,78,467.60 3,22,424.63 3,24,079.54
Less: Impairment loss allowance (13,206.11) (13,206.11) (11,996.04) (11,996.04)
Total (B) - Net Loans 3,64,212.04 3,65,261.49 3,10428.64 3,12,083.50
Loans in India
Public Sector 3,38,810.31 3,39,877.44 2,84,644.05 2,86,210.40
Private Sector 38,607.84 38,690.16 37,780.63 37,869.14
Total (CKI) - Gross Loans 3,77,418.15 3,78,467.60 3,22,424.68 3,24,079.54
Less: Impairment loss allowance {13,206.11) (13,206.11) {11,996.04) (11,996.04)
Total (C){I) - Net Loans 3,64,212,04 3,65,261.49 3,10,428.64 3,12,083.50
Loans outside India - - - -
Less: Impairment Joss allowance - - - -
Total (C)AD - Net Loans - - . -
Total (C)(D) and (C)(ID 3,64,212.04 3,65,261.49 3,10,428.64 3,12,083.50
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1.1

Investments
Investments
(€ in Crores,
Farticulars tised Cost At fair value Sub-tatal Others (At Total
Through Other { Through profit Designated at Cost)
Comprehensive or loss Fair valve
Income through profit or
inss
{1) 2 [£)] w (5= 1+243+4} (33 ]

As at 31st Match, 2071
Gavl. Securities 649.08 - - - £49.08 - 649.08
Debt Securikies 40873 - 143.06 - 5519 - 55179
Equity Instruments - 430.12 22.60 - 453.73 453.73
Preference Shares 2609 - 4298 - 69.08 - 69.08
(Cthers - - - - - -
Total - Gross (A) 1.083.90 43013 209.65 - 1,72.68 - 1,723.68
I1vvestments sutside India - - - - - -
Investments in India 1,083.90 430,13 209.65 - 1,723.68 - 1,723.68
Total - Gross {B) 1,083.90 430.%3 2065 - 1,723 .68 - 1,723.68
Total [nvestments 108190 43013 20065 - 172368 - 172368
Less: impairment loss aliowance i - - - - - - -
Total - Net (D=A-C) 1,0683.90 430.13 20965 - 172368 - 1,723.68
As at 315t March, 2020
Govt. Securities - - - - - -
Diebt Securities 3210 - 1,500.62 - 153272 - 153272
Equity Instruments - 507 43 12.50 - 519.93 - 51993
Preference Shares pria) - 4541 - 6834 - 5834
Others - 612 - 6.12 - 6.12
Tatal - Gross (A) 55.03 51355 1,358.53 - 212711 - 2,12711
Investments cutside India - - - - - -
Investments in India 55.03 513.55 1,558.53 - 2,127.11 - 212211
Total - Gross (B 55.03 51355 1,558.53 - 211 . 2,127.11
Total Investnents 55.03 51355 1,558.53 - 212211 - 2,127.11
Less: impairment loss allowance (O - - . - - - -
Total - Net (D=A-C} 55.03 51385 1,558.53 - 2,127.11 - 2,1%7.11

Investments accounted for using equity method

{ in Crozes,

Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Investment in loint Ventures

- Energy Efficiency Serviges Ltd. 257.74 25847
(21,81,00,000 Equity shares of T 10 cach)

\Total 25774 258.47

Details of investments

(2 in Crores)

Particulass Investment measured at As at 31-03-2021 As at 31413-2020

Number Amount Numtber Amount

Government Securities
-5.22% GSEC 2025 Amortised Cost 50,00,000 50.99 - -
-7.27% GSEC 2026 Amortised Cost 50,00,000 55.98 - -

- 7.17% GSEC 2028 Amontised Cost 50,00,000 54.64 - -

- 5.77% GSEC 2030 Amortised Cost 50,00,00¢ 49.85 - -

- 620% Rajasthan SDL 2027 Amortised Cost 20,00,000 26.36 - -

. 7.20% Maharashtra SDL 2027 Amortised Cost 2000000 21.53 - -

- 6.60% Himachal Pradesh SDL 2036 Amortised Cost 50,00,000 51.28 - -

- 6.48% Karnataka SDL 203% Amortised Cost 40,00,000 4126 - -
_7.29% Karnataka SCL 2039 Amortised Cost 1,00,00,000 100.97 - -

- 7.24% Karnataka SDL 2037 Amortised Cost 50,00,000 50.30 -

_8.44% Jharkhand SDL 2029 Amortised Cost 30,00,000 3253 - -

- 8.57% Rajasthan SDL 2028 Amortised Cost 10,00,003 11.02 - -

- 6.95% Tamil Nadu SDE 2031 Amortised Cost 25,00,000 502 - -

- 6.6(% Uttar Pradesh SDL 20130 Amortised Cost 20,00,000 1974 -

- 5,85% Rajasthan SDL 2031 Amoxtised Cost 30,00,000 2995 -

- R.35% Kerata SDL 20729 Amortised Cost 10,00,000 1086 - -

- 8.60% Cujarat SDL 2028 Amortised Cost 20,00,000 7 -
Sub-total - Govemment Securities £49.08 -
Debt Securities
_578% Bonds of Chennai Petrolewsm Corporation Lirnited Amortisad Cost 150 1563 - -

- 6.11% Bonds of Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited Amartised Cost 100 1052 - -

- 7.30% Bonds of NMDC Limited Amortised Cost 200 771 -

_7.30% Bonds of Power Grid Corporation of India Lirited Amortised Cost 200 2265 - -

. 8.69% Bonds of Damodar Valley Corporation Amortised Cost 200 21.88 - -

_7.05% Bonds of Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited Amertised Cost 850 88.18 - -

- 6,65% Bonds of Food Corporation of India Amortised Cost 00 .62 - -

. 7.19% Bonds of THDC india Limited Amortised Cost 50 26.33 - -

-11.15% Parpetual Bonds of Indian Bank Fair value through profit or loss - - 5,000 560.31

.11.25% Perpetuak Sonls of Bank of Baroda Fair value through profit or loss - 5,000 500.00

- 11.25% Perpetual Bonds of Syndicate Bank Fair value through profit or loss - - 5,000 300.31




(¥in Croras)

Particulars Investment mensured at As at 31-03-2021 A at 31-03-2020
Number Assount Number Amount

_7.39% Tax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Amortised Cast 86,796 881 86,798 &.81
Bonds of Housing and Urban DevelepmntCorpuration(HU’DCO)

- 7.35% Tax Eree Bonds of National Highway Authority of Indla Amartised Cost 42,R55 4.50 42,855 4.6
Tad. (NHAN

7.39% Tax Free of National Highway Authority of India Ltd. Amortised Cost 35463 367 35,463 367
NHAD

- 7.4%% Tax Free Bonds of Indian Renewable Energy Amortised Cost 61,308 622 £1.308 622
Mevelanment Avenc (IRFIIAY

- 7.35% Tax Free Bongls of Indian Ratlway Finance Corporation Amortised Cost 12,338 231 22,338 231
iTRFCY

- 7.35% Tax Free Bonds of National Bank for Agricalture and Amortised Cost 14,028 143 14,028 140
Rural Devalnnment INABARDY

- B.76% Tax Frec Bonds of Housing and Urban Developrent Amortised Cost 50,000 5.09 50,000 5.09
Cormaoration (HUDXY

- 3% Optionally convertibic debentures- Series A of Essar Power Fair value through profit of foss 22,855,079 99.33 -
Transmission Co. Lid.

- 3% Optionally cenvertible debentures- Series B of Essar Power Eair value through profit or loss 10.06,12,911 43.73 - -
Tranemissiom Cn. Lid.

- Optionally convertible debentures- Series C of Essar Power Fair value through profit or loss 1,86,35,162 - - -
Transmission <o | hd.

- % Non- Convertible Debentures {NCDs} of Ferro Alloys Amortised Cost 2,52,91,783 149.10 - -
Cornaration Lirmited

- 0.01% Opticnally convertible Debentures (OCD) Series A of Fair value through profit or Joss 21,38,00.170 - - -
R.K.M Power(een Private Lid.

-0.01% Optionally convertible Debentures (OCD) Sevies B of Fair value through profit or loss 6303032 - - -
R.& M Power(en Private 1.td.

- 0.01% Optionally convertible Debentutes (OCD} Series Aj of Fair value through profit ot knss 1,04.74,150 - - -

R K M Powerflen Private Ttd.

Sub-total - Debt Securities 551.79 1532.72
Equity Instruments

- NHFC Lid. Faiir value through other comprehensive income 17,53,02,206 47861 | 17.5302.206 349.73
- Indian Energy Exchange Ltd. Fair value through otber comprehensive income - - 1,22,71.211 157.01
- HUDCO Lid. Fair value through other comprehensive income 347,429 152 3,47.429 069
- Universal Commodity Exchange Ltd. Fair value through other comprehensive income 1.60,00,060 - 1,60,00,000 -

- Rattan India Power Ltd. Fair value through profti or loss 9,25,68,105 2360 9,25.64,105 1250
- R.K.M PowerGen Private Ltd. Fair value through profil of loss 14,17.90,667 - - -
‘Sub-total - Equity Instruments 453.73 519.93
Preference Shares (P5)

- Receemable PS of Rattan India Power Lid. Amartised st 2,87,20,974 26.09 2,87.20,978 2293
- Optionally Convertible PS of Rattan india Power Ld. Fair value throwgh profit or loss 4,33,03,616 4299 433,361 45.41
Sub-total - Preference Shares 63.08 63.34
Others

- Units of 'Small is Beautiful’' Ventute Capital Fund Fair value through cther comprehensive income: £1,52.200 - 1,520 6,12
Sub-total - Others - 612
Total investments 1.723.68 212711
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(A)
(B)
©
(D)
(E)

(F}
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14

Other financial assets

The Company has categorised all the comp

onents under 'Other Financial Assets' at Amortised Cost in accord:

ance with the requirements of Ind AS

109.
{Zin Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Loans to Employees 39.94 34.61
Advances to Employees 0.41 0.30
Loans & Advances to Subsidiaries - -
Security Deposits 145 1.88
Recoverable from Govt. of India - -
- Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds 2431448 21,931.30
Other Amounts Recoverable 152.13 164.08
Less: Impairment loss aliowance (88.53) {30.85)
Other Amounts Recoverable (Net) 63.60 133.23
Total (A to F) 24,419.88 22,101.32
Curtent tax assets (net)
(% in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Advance Income-tax & TDS 236.26 1,889.71
Less: Provision for Income Tax (72.35) (1,613.59)
Sub-Total (1) 163,91 276.12
Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest 5.26 201.11
Provision for income tax for demand under contest (0.25) (67.29)
Sub-Total (2) 5.01 133.82
Current tax assets (Net) 168.92 409.94
Deferred tax assets (net)
(Z in Crores}
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2,461.03 2,050.57

Page 82 of 90




16 Investment Property

(2in Crores
Particularg Cpening Balance Additions Sates/ adjustment Closing Balance
duringtheyear _ | during the year
Ap at 31.03.2021 o1 - - 0.01
As at 31.06.2020 0.00 - - 001
16 Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asscts
% in Cror
Frﬁwlm Property, Plant & Equipment Capital Work- Intangible Other
in-Progress | Assets under Intangible
Development Ansets
Prechold |Right-of-Use! Buildings Right-of-Use | Furniture & EDF Office Vehicles | Leanehold Total Immovable Computer Computer
Land Land Building Fixtures | Equipments | Equipnatents Intprovements Property Software Software
Groes carrying value
As at 31.03.2119 110.39 159 3074 - 1059 245 w90 0.40 248 199.94 196.94 158 17.38
Additions - - 2.65 184 2.4 3.30 - - 19.63 7490 - 357
Botrowings Cost Capila]ised - . - _ . . R N - 15.79 _ .
Disposals - - - - 0.84 2.35 222 - - 541 - 0.82 721
As ai 31.03 2020 110.3% 159 3174 2.65 1199 L1 20.98 0.40 248 20816 287 62 077 1374
Additions - - 98.66 024 9.65 480 512 R - 118.47 13170 - 087
Borrowings Cost Capitalised - - - - - - - - . - nM . -
Disposals/ Adjustments - - - 2.89 0.75 34l 824 - 248 17.77 106.60 - 0.01
Ag 2t 31.08.2021 10,39 159 130400 - 088 2433 17.86 0.40 - 305,86 335.67 077 12.80
A lated depreciation/
As at §1,03.2019 - 031 858 - 653 1538 11.34 0.30 0.90 331 - - 8583
Charge for the year - o 0.48 077 073 3.25 278 002 044 548 . - 330
Adjustment for disposals - - - - 0.35 204 121 - - 3.60 - - 721
As at 31.03.2020 - 032 9.06 077 691 1656 1291 032 134 8.19 - - 192
Charge for the year - i1} 075 0.54 099 293 2,50 042 D36 12 - - 27
Adjustment for disposals - - - 131 022 272 5.20 . 170 1115 - - 001
A at 31.05.2021 - 035 981 - 768 16.77 10.21 0.34 - 1516 - - 7465
Net block as at 31.03.2020 110.39 127 2268 188 5.08 638 807 008 114 18697 287.62 0.77 882
Net block as at 31.03.2021 110.39 124 1059 - 13.21 7.56 7.65 0.06 . 260.70 335.67 0.77 615
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Other non-financial assets

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 8.84 50.38
Other Advances 3.34 575
Balances with Govt. Authorities 68.06 59.58
Pre-Spent Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Expenses 403 -
Prepaid Expenses 429 0.22
Deferred Employee Cost 14.09 13.21
Deferred Expenses - 319
Other Assets 0.02 0.04
Total (A to H) 102.67 13237
Disposal Group
(% in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Assets classified as held for sale
Investrent in associates 0.60 0.20
Loans to associates 1345 9.33
Total (A+B) 14.05 9.53
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
Payable to associates 0.08 0.68
Total (C) 0.08 0.68
Disposal group -Net assets (A+B-C) 1397 8.85
Trade Payables
{Z in Crores)

Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of MSMEs 001 0.15
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 6150 46,00

Total 61.51 46.15
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Debt Securities
The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108.
(% in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost
Secured Long-Term Debt Securities
Institutional Bonds 3,470.00 3,679.52 3,470.00 3,679.51
S4EC Capital Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 17,264.97 17,901.65 21,976.14 22,781.73
Tax Free Bonds 12,602.97 13,044.23 12,602.97 13,041.35
Bond Application Money 856.62 85471 400.19 39941
Sub-total (A} 34,194.56 35,480.11 38,449.30 39,902.00
Unsecured Long-Term Debt Securities
Institutional Bonds 1,69,856.60 1,75,707.24 1,48,650,20 1,53,672.91
Infrastructure Bonds 11.07 21.36 1646 25.19
Zero Coupon Bonds - - 1,364.85 1,363.91
Foreign Currency Bonds 26,461.71 26,060.40 22,615.78 22,064.56
Sub-total (B} 1,96,329.38 2,01,789,00 1,72,647.29 1,77,126.57
Unsecured Short-Term Debt Securities
Commercial Paper - - 2,925.00 2,889.68
Sub-total (C) - - 2,925.00 2,889.68
Total - Debt Securities !A+B+_(_J! %30i523.94 2‘37i269.11 3‘1&021.59 2‘19‘918.25
Debt Gecurities issued in/ outside India
Debt Securities in India 2,04,062.23 2,11,208.71 1,91,405.81 1,97,853.69
Debt Securities outside India 26,461.71 26,060.40 22,615.78 22,064.56
Total - Debt Securities 2,30,523.94 2,37,269.11 2,14,021.59 2,19,918.25

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

The Company has categorised all borrowings (other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of

Ind AS 109.
(¥ in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Principal O/s | Amortised Cost Principal O/s__| Amortised Cost
Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings
Term Loans from Banks 29,938.58 29,953.76 13,899.78 18,900.72
Term Loans from Financial Institutions 5,800.00 5,800.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Fareign Currency Borrowings 21,024.72 20,890.94 21,762.71 21,579.29
FCNR (B} Loans - - 1,017.71 1,020.89
Term Loans from Govt. of India 10,000.00 10,325.12 10,000.00 10,326.81
Lease Liability 0.05 0.05 212 212
Sub-total (A} 66,763.35 66,969.87 52,682.32 52,829.83
Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings
FCNR (B) Loans 5,329.10 5,335.01 5,955.49 596491
Short Term Loans/ Loans repayable on demand from Banks 10,186.52 10,201.99 2,754.86 2,755.92
Loans repayable on demand from Holding Comgpany 3,000.00 3,000.49 - -
Sub-total (B) 18,515.62 18,537.49 8,710.35 £,720.83
Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) (Ato B __ 85,278.97 85,507.36 61,392.67 61,550.66
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) in/ outside India
Borrowings in India 64,254.25 64,616.42 39,629.96 39,971.37
Borrowings outside India 21,024.72 20,890.94 21,762.71 21,579.29
Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) §5,278.97 85,507.36 61,392.67 61,550.66
Subordinated Liabilities
‘The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109.
(2 in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Face Value Amortised Cost Face Value Amortised Cost
159ih Series - Gubordinate Tier-1 Bonds - 1,999.50 2,127 54 N N
7.96% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030
175¢h Series - Subordinate Tier-1l Bonds - 2,151.20 2,131.45 2,151.20 2,151.86
§.07% Redeemable at par on 28.03.202%
115th Series - Subordinate Tier-I1 Bonds - 2,500.00 2,667.90 2,500.00 2,667.79
8.06% Redeemable at par on 31.05.2023 - - - -
Total - Subordinated Liabilities 6,650.70 _6946.89 45651'20 4,819.65
Subordinated Liabilities in/ outside India
Borrowings in India 6,650.70 6,946.89 4,651.20 4,819.65
Borrowings cutside India - - - -
Total - Subordinated Liabilities 6,650.70 6,946.89 4,651.20 4,819.65




23 Other Financial Liabilities

(% in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
(A) | Unpaid Dividends 579 4.75
(B) | Unpaid Principal & Interest on Bonds
. Matured Bonds & Interest Accrued thereon 49.77 39.13
- Interest on Bonds 18.95 1797
Sub-total (B) 68.72 57.10
(C) |Funds Received from Govt. of India for Disbursement as 91,399.15 85,431.74
Subsidy/ Grant (cumulative)
Add: Interest on such funds (net of refund) 2896 3196
Less: Disbursed to Beneficiaries {cumulative) £90,099.92) (83,642.93
Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy/ Grant 1,328.19 1,820.77
(D) {Payables towards Bonds Fully serviced by Govt. of India 2431443 21,792.32
(E) | Payable towards funded staff benefits 9.00 0.38
(F) | Other Liabilities 496.21 106.89
Total (A to F) 26,222.35 23,782.21
24 Current tax liabilities (net)
(% in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Provision for Income Tax 2,691.50 -
Less: Advance Income-tax & TDS (2,677.50) -
Current tax liabilities (Net) 14.40 -
25 Provisions
(Z in Crores
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Provisions for
(A) | Employee Benefits
Earned Leave Liability 1857 16.22
Medical Leave Liability 20.91 21.87
Settlement Allowance 1.89 1.60
Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 413 425
Long Service Award 202 1.89
Incentive 4792 5257
Loyalty Bonus 0.15 0.31
Sub-total (A) 95.59 93.71
(B} |Others
Expected Credit Loss on Letters of Comtfort 9.09 8.38
Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Account - -
Sub-total (B) 9.09 8.38
Total (A+B) 104.68 107.09
26 Other Non-Financial Liabilities
(% in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
(A) | Income Received in Advance 0.01 0.15
(B) | Sundry Liabilities Account (Interest Capitalisation) 5.07 6.57
{C) | Unbitled Liability towards Capital Account 2853 -
(D) | Unamortised Fee on Undisbursed Loans 68.64 46,15
(F) | Advance received from Govt. towards Govt. Schemes 1.17 4,14
(F} | Statutory Dues 26.82 2474
(G) |Other Liabilities 0.0 1.48
Total (A to G} 130.25 83.23
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Equity Share Capital

(% in Crores)
Particulars As ai 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authorised :
Equity shares of T10 each 5,00,00,00,000 5,000.00 5,00,00,00,000 5,000.00
L d, Subscribed and Paid up:
Fully paid up Equity shares of T 10 each 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92 1,97,49,18,600 1,974.92
Total 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92 1,97,49,18,000 1,974.92
Instruments entirely equity in namre
(T in Crorgs)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Number Amount Number Amount
Fully paid up Perpetual Debts Instrument entirely equity in nature of
2 10 lakhs each 5,584 558.40 - -
Total 5,584 558,40 - -
Other Equity
(% in Crores)
Particulars As at 31-03-2021 As at 31-03-2020
Other Reserves
Special Reserve created u/s 36(1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 19,222.23 16,659.10
Reserve for Bad and doubtful debts ws 36(1)(viia} of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2,128.41 2,992.83
Reserve Fund u/s 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 3,804.00 2,131.00
Securities Premium 2,236.54 2,236.54
Foreign Currency Monetary [tem Transkation Difference Account (573.16) {1,719.38)
Capital Reserve 470 4.70
General Reserve 5,903.16 6,976.23
Impairment Reserve - 79329
Retained Earnings 4,606.01 3,674.25
Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)
- Share of Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) of Joint (1.19) (248}
Venture accounted for using equity method
- Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 24.07 106.26
- Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges (165.61} (226.08)
- Cost of Hedging reserve 41.45 (204.75)
Total - Other Equity (A+B+C) 41,230.61 33,421.51

Additions and deductions to the components of ‘Other Equity” has been disclosed in

“Statereni of Changes in Equity”.
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Interest Income

{¥in Croves
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
On Fi ial | OnFi ial On Pinancial OnFi qal On Fi ial OnFi ial
Agsets Assels Assets d [ Assets d | Assets ed | Assels d
measured at measured at at Fair Value at Fair ¥alue at Amortised at Fair Value
FairValue |Amortised Cost|throngh Profitor| through OcClI Cost through Profitor
through OCI Loss Loss
Interest on Loan Assets
Long term financing - 34,232.84 - - 29,245.18 -
Less: Rebate for timely payments/completion etc - (0.06) - - (0.08) -
Long term financing {net) - 34,232.78 - - 29,245.10 -
Short term financing B 69.98 - - 177.23 -
Sub-total (A) - 3430276 - - 9,42333 -
131 from knv L
Interest from CF/ ICD - - - - 0.21 -
Interest from Govt. Securities - 7.16 - - 1.89 -
Tnterest from Long Term Tnvestments - 184 195.30 114 169.75
Interest from Short Term Investments - 3.90 - - - -
Sub-total (B} - 29.40 195.30 - 5.24 169.75
Interest on Deposits with Banks
Interest from Deposits - 161.44 - - 66.27 -
Sub-total (C} - 161.44 - - 66.27 -
Other Interest Income
Interest from Staff Advances - 3.70 - - 4.45 -
Interest on Mobilisation Advance - 0.56 - - 2.3% -
Unwinding of Discount of Security Deposits - 0.03 - - 0.08 -
Tnterest from SPVs - 018 - - 127 -
Sub-total {D} - 445 - - 8.19 -
Total - Interest Income (A to D) - 34,498.05 195.30 - 29,502.03 169.75
Dividend Income
(2 in Crores),
Particul Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
- Dividend from Long-Term Investments 27.97 36.94
Total - Dividend 1 27.97 36.94
Fees and Commissiont Income
{2 in Crores)
Particulars Year ended 31.032021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Fees based Income 26.57 6.68
Prepayment Premium 35.14 12.75
Fee for Implementation of Govt. Schemes 33.67 19.52
Total - Fees and C isston 1 95.38 38.95
Sale of services
{2 in Crores),
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Consultancy Engmeering Services 156 98 166.80
Execution of IT Implementztion projects 1.56 7.68
Income from RIC - UE Village Project 5.01 T.63
Documentation fees 0.10 -
‘Toral 163.65 182.11
Other Income
(% in Crores,
Parliculars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Fees from Training Courses 277 6.38
Interest érom Income Tax Refund 1.00 2.85
Miscellaneous [noome 18.95 64.88
Total - Other Income 2272 77.27
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35  Finance Costs
Finance Costs have been incurred on financial iabilities measured at amortised cost.
®in
Particulats Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
(i) [Interest on Borrowings
- Loans from Govt. of India 820.81 612.97
- Loans from Banks/ Financial Institutions 2,091.00 1,725.10
- External Commercial Borrowings 643.83 917.26
- Lease Liability 011 0.29
Sub-Total {i} 3,555.75 3,255.62
(i) Interest on Debt Securities
- Domestic Debt Securities 1541864 13,923.95
- Foreign Currency Debt Securities 1,183.12 854.73
- Commercial Paper 3532 453.66
Sub-Total (i) 16,637.08 15,242.34
(i} |Interest on Subordinated Liabilities
- Subordinate Bonds 39415 395.36
Sub-Total (i) 394.15 395.36
{iv) |Other Interest Expense
- Swap Premium 894.62 108.83
- Interest on Income Tax 271 0.21
- Tnterest on lability towards employes benefits 232 4.60
- Miscellaneous interest expense 437 0.13
Sub-Total {iv) 924.11 113.77
Taotal - Finance Costs 21,511.09 19,007.09
Less: Finance Costs Capitalised (32.04) (15.79)
Total - Finance Costs (Net) 21,489.08 18,991.30
36  Net translation/ transaction exchange loss/ {gain)
in MH
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Net translation/ transaction exchange loss/ {gain} 330.26 2,357.90
Total 330.26 2,357.90
The figures above include amortisation of net translation/ ransaction exchange loss/ {gain) on Long Term Foreign Currency Monetary ltems recognised in the financial stetements Before Ist
April 2078 amounting to £ 708.57 crores {Previotis year 2 675.95 crores).
37  Fees and commission expense
(% in Crores)
Particul. Year ended 31.03.2021 “Year ended 31.03.2020
i) | Guarantee Fee - 13.29
(i) | Listing and Trusteeship Fee 0.78 15
(ifi) | Agency Fees .m 1.66
(iv) | Credit Rating Expenses 333 3.05
(v} | Other Finance Charges 283 593
Total (i to v) 9.95 25.44
38 Net Gain/ (lpss) on Fair Value Changes
{Zin Crores].
Particul Year ended 31.03.2021 Yeat ended 31.03.2020
(A) | Net gair/ (loss) on financial instruments at Fair Value through
profit or Joss
i) |Ontrading Portfolio - -
(i) |Others
- Changes in fair value of Derivatives 54592 {47.72)
- Changes in fair value of Long Term Investments 243 640
- Changes in fair value of Short-term MF investments 2398 1547
Sub-total (i) 572.33 (25.85)
Total (A) 572,33 (25.85)
Breakup of Fair Value Changes
- Realised 1,077.91 {60.07)
- Unealised (505.58) 3422
Total Net Gain/ (loss) on Fair Value Chang 57233 (25.85)
Fair value changes in this schedule are other than those arising on account of accrued interest income/ expense and represents changes in fair value of derivatives designated as
economic hedges not designated under hedge accounting and ineffective hedge
39  Impairment on financial instruments
{¥in Crores
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
On financial instruments On financial instraments On financial instruments On financial instruments
d at FYOCI d at Amortised Cost measured at FVOCI measured at Amortised Cost
{i) |-Loans* - 2,363.33 - §84.91
(i) |- Others - 82.61 - 34.58
Total (i+ii) - 2,445.94 - 919.49

* includes T 071 crores (Previous year £ 8.38 crores) towards impairmettt aliowance on Letters of Comfort.
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Cost of services rendered

(2 in Crores)
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Project Expenses 88.51 7161
Total 58.51 7L61
Employee Benefits Expense
{Z in Crores)
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
- Sataries and Aliowances 11967 145.83
- Contribution te Provident Fund and Other Funds 13.96 1549
- Expenses towards Post Employment Benefits 4.87 5.07
- Rent towards Residential Accomodation for Employees 218 1.58
- Staff Welfare Expenses 22.92 25.18
Total 163.62 193.15
Depreciation and amortization
(% in Crores}
Particul Yeat ended 31.03.2021 Yeat ended 31.03.2020
- Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 812 848
- Amortization on Intangible Assets 274 3.29
Total 10.86 11.77
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
{¥ in Crores)
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
- Direct Expenditure 141.73 254,53
- Overheads 4.54 4.76
Total 146.27 259.29
Other Expenses
1% in Crores}
Pazticul Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
- Travelling and Conveyance 9.56 15.80
- Publicity & Promotion Expenses 5.86 6.03
- Repairs and Maintenance 12.61 12.38
- Rent, taxes and energy costs 16.87 15.12
- Insurance Charges .10 053
- Communication costs 235 342
- Printing & stationery 0.9 292
- Director's sitting fees 0.10 a.19
- Auditors' fees and expenses 1.52 1.62
- Legai & Professional Charges 11.28 12.21
. Net Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 4.03 1.69
- Monjtoring Expenses 17.20 12.4%
- Miscellaneous Expenses 26.91 46.41
Total 169.34 130.41
Tax Expense
(% in Crores
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
- Current tax expense 2,698.02 1,579.79
- Current tax expense/ {benefit) pertaining to earlier years 22295 65.27
Sub-total - Current Tax 2,920.97 1,645.06
- Deferred tax expense/ (credit) (519.62) 41265
Total 2,401.35 2,057.71
Earnings per Share
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Numerator
Profit for the year from continumg operations as per Statement §,378.24 4,972.27
of Profit and Loss {¥ in Crores)
Profit for the year from continuing and discontinued operations 8,378.24 4,972.27
as per Statement of Profit and Loss (¥ in Crores)
Denominator
Weighted average Number of equity shares 1,97,49,18,000 1,97,49,18,000
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (in ¥ for an equity share of Z 4242 25.18
10 each} {for continuing operations)
Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share (in 2 for an equity share of 2
10 each) {for continuing and discontinued operations)
42.42 518






